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1 A. From my understanding, yes. 1 information related to the testing of the
2 Q. What isthe basis of that 2 protocol would have been reported to the FDA
3 understanding? 3 would be the only knowledge | would have
4 A. Going back to what | recollect, 4 that -- through that reporting and method
5 what the -- was documented in the development 5 vadlidation that the FDA may have that
6 of the method, that document. 6 information.
7 Q. Thisisthe document you 7 Q. I'msorry, maam, | don't
8 referred to several timesthat Mr. Krahling 8 follow that. My question is, do you have
9 gaveyou? 9 firsthand knowledge of whether the FDA knew
10 A. Yes 10 what viruswas being used in the plaque
11 Q. Do you havethe expertiseto 11 reduction neutralization assay? Do you have
12 state whether the amount that it had been 12 firsthand knowledge of that?
13 passaged made it no longer wild type? 13 MR. KELLER: Objection. Vague
14 MR. KELLER: Objection. Lack 14 and ambiguous.
15 of foundation. Vague and ambiguous. 15 THE WITNESS: | have knowledge
16 THEWITNESS: I'mtrying to 16 that they have received the completed
17 think through your question. So can 17 study, clinical study with the data
18 you repeat the question? 18 reported. Based on my knowledge, they
19 BY MR. SANGIAMO: 19 would also have the validation of the
20 Q. Letmeask this: Do you know 20 methodology and through that would be
21 how many times it was passaged? 21 what | would consider them to have
22 A. 1 donot recall. 22 information around what may or may not
23 Q. Do you have the expertise to 23 have been used as the virus used in the
24 assess whether that number of passages, 24 methodology.
Page 410 Page 412
1 whatever itis, was such that it isno longer 1 BY MR. SANGIAMO:
2 wildtype? 2 Q. Soit'syour belief that they
3 MR. KELLER: Objection. Lack 3 hadthevaidation. Right? Isthat your
4 of foundation. Vague and ambiguous. 4 testimony?
5 THE WITNESS: | cannot say. | 5 A. Yes
6 would say that yes, | lack the 6 MR. KELLER: Objection.
7 expertise to... 7 BY MR. SANGIAMO:
8 BY MR.SANGIAMO: 8 Q. Andit'syour belief that the --
9 Q. Didyou participatein the 9 MR. KELLER: Hold on. I'm not
10 decision-making about what virus should be 10 done objecting. Give me a second.
11 usedin the plague reduction neutralization 11 Objection.
12 assay used in Protocol 0077 12 Could | hear the question back?
13 A. No. 13 - - -
14 Q. Do you have firsthand knowledge 14 (The court reporter read the
15 of whether the FDA knew what virusMerck was | 15 pertinent part of the record.)
16 using in the plague reduction neutralization 16 - - -
17 assay for Protocol 0077 17 MR. KELLER: Objection.
18 MR. KELLER: Objection. 18 Mischaracterizes her testimony.
19 Overbroad. 19 Overbroad, vague and ambiguous.
20 THE WITNESS: At what time 20 BY MR. SANGIAMO:
21 point are you referring to? 21 Q. Butyousaidyes. Right?
22 BY MR. SANGIAMO: 22 A. Yes
23 Q. Right now. 23 Q. Andisityour belief that the
24 A.  With the exception that the 24 vdlidation would have identified the virus
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1 that was used in the assay? 1 through further on this?
2 A. | would have expected it to be, 2 BY MR. SANGIAMO:
3 but | can't confirm that. 3 Q. Absolutely.
4 Q. Butif it was, that would be 4 MR. KELLER: You may want to
5 one means by which the FDA would have known 5 start at paragraph 33 to 39.
6 what viruswas being used in the assay. Is 6 BY MR. SANGIAMO:
7 that your testimony? 7 Q. What paragraph are you on?
8 A. Yes 8 A. I'mdone.
9 Q. Do you have knowledge of 9 Q. Solet'sgo back to paragraph 35
10 whether the FDA may have learned what virus 10 and the sentence, "The use of animal
11 wasbeing used in the assay on other 11 antibodiesin laboratory testing is not
12 occasions? 12 uncommon." | think the pending question is
13 MR. KELLER: Objection. Vague 13 whether you have an opinion as to whether that
14 and ambiguous. Overbroad. 14 isan accurate statement?
15 THE WITNESS: Not that | can 15 MR. KELLER: Objection. Seeks
16 recall. 16 alega conclusion from alega document.
17 BY MR. SANGIAMO: 17 Seeks expert opinion from alay witness.
18 Q. You aso mentioned the use of 18 Y ou can answer.
19 antihuman IgG in the assay as a concern of 19 THE WITNESS: In my opinion,
20 yours about the design of the assay. |Isthat 20 yes, | have seen animal antibodies
21 afair statement? 21 being used in laboratory testing,
22 A. Yes. 22 not -- which includes testing outside
23 Q. Could you turn to Exhibit 6, 23 of PRN methodology.
24 please, which is the Amended Complaint in this 24 BY MR. SANGIAMO:
Page 414 Page 416
1 case. If you couldturn, please, to 1 Q. Doyou agreethat it's not
2 paragraph 35. Areyou there? 2 uncommon? You said you've seenit. I'm
3 A. Yes 3 asking do you agree that it's not uncommon?
4 Q. If yougodown fivelines 4 MR. KELLER: Same objection.
5 within paragraph 35. Do you see the sentence,| 5 THE WITNESS: | agree.
6 "Theuseof animal antibodiesin laboratory 6 BY MR. SANGIAMO:
7 testing is not uncommon"? Do you see that? 7 Q. Isyour basisfor saying it's
8 A. Yes 8 not uncommon the fact that you've seen it
9 Q. Isthereferencethereto 9 yoursdlf in ather circumstances?
10 animal antibodies, is that to the antihuman 10 A. Yes
11 1gG? 11 Q. Isthereany other basisfor
12 A. Yes 12 your belief that it's not uncommon?
13 Q. Doyou agree with that 13 MR. KELLER: Objection. Ifin
14 statement that the use of animal antibodiesin | 14 order to answer that question you would
15 laboratory testing is not uncommon? 15 have to disclose communications with
16 MR. KELLER: Objection. Seeks 16 your counsel, | would instruct you not
17 expert testimony from alay witness. 17 to answer the question to the extent
18 BY MR. SANGIAMO: 18 that it will disclose communications
19 Q. Letmebackitupastepto 19 with counsal.
20 accommodate Mr. Keller's objection. 20 THE WITNESS: | cannot answer
21 Do you have an opinion asto 21 the question.
22 whether that is an accurate statement? 22 BY MR. SANGIAMO:
23 MR. KELLER: Same objection. 23 Q. Sowithout disclosing
24 THE WITNESS: Can | read 24 communications with your counsel --
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1 A. Right. 1 BY MR. SANGIAMO:
2 Q. --you could not answer the 2 Q. Inconnection with your
3 question of whether there are other bases for 3 employment at various places or just at New
4 your belief it's not uncommon. Do | haveit 4 Haven?
5 right? 5 A. Variousplaces.
6 A. Correct. 6 Q. Isthereaway for you to
7 Q. How many assays have you seen 7 describe what the function is of the animal
8 animal antibodies used in? 8 antibodiesin the ELISAsthat you've seen?
9 A. What do you mean by "how many 9 MR. KELLER: Objection. Vague
10 assays'? 10 and ambiguous.
11 Q. Haveyouseenitreferredtoin 11 THE WITNESS: Can you restate
12 SOPsin other assays? 12 the question?
13 A. Soyou'retalking about different 13 BY MR. SANGIAMO:
14 types of assays or how many different ELISAs? 14 Q. If a any point you don't have
15 Isitjust an ELISA and something else or is 15 the expertise to answer one of these
16 it number of ELISAS, that sort of thing? 16 questions, just say so.
17 Q. | understand your point. Have 17 A. Uh-huh.
18 you seenitin any assays other than ELISA 18 Q. Do you know what role the
19 assays and the plaque reduction neutralization | 19 animal antibodies played in the operation of
20 assay that you ran at Merck? 20 the ELISAsinwhich you've seen animal
21 MR. KELLER: Objection. Lacks 21 antibodies used?
22 foundation. 22 MR. KELLER: Objection. Vague
23 THE WITNESS: Socanyou break |23 and ambiguous. Lack of foundation.
24 it down? 24 THE WITNESS: Again, it does
Page 418 Page 420
1 BY MR. SANGIAMO: 1 help to enhance the reaction by
2 Q. Sameproblem? 2 allowing for more specific -- or not
3 A. Yes 3 specific but more binding to what is
4 Q. Haveyouseenitusedin ELISAS? 4 being tested.
5 A. Yes 5 BY MR. SANGIAMO:
6 Q. How many different kinds of 6 Q. Sodoesit make the assays more
7 ELISAshaveyou seen anima antibodiesused | 7 sensitive?
8 in? 8 MR. KELLER: Objection. Vague
9 MR. KELLER: Objection. Lack 9 and ambiguous.
10 of foundation. 10 THE WITNESS: It depends on the
11 THE WITNESS: Many different 11 assay.
12 kinds. 12 BY MR. SANGIAMO:
13 BY MR. SANGIAMO: 13 Q. Isthereany function it
14 Q. Morethanfive? 14 performsasfar asyou know other than to make
15 A. Yes 15 the assay more sensitive?
16 Q. Morethan ten? 16 A. Again, it could be used as much
17 A. Probably. 17 inhereasahighlighter, so there could be
18 Q. Arethese ELISAsthat you ran 18 another function. | can't elaborate on it at
19 a New Haven? 19 thistime. Just for my -- not having worked
20 MR. KELLER: Objection. Lack 20 directly with it at the current time.
21 of foundation. 21 Q. Why do you say at the current
22 THE WITNESS: They wouldbein |22 time? What do you mean by that?
23 ELISAsthat | either ran or have seen 23 A. Just, again, I'm not performing
24 the procedure or methodol ogy. 24 assays myself right now. Sojust my
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1 familiarity withit. 1 Q. I'mgoing to try to break that
2 Q. Thisisatopicthat at one 2 down, but you tell meif I'm not doing it
3 timeyou would have felt comfortable 3 correctly. All right?
4 addressing but right now you do not. Do | 4 A. Yes
5 havethat right? 5 Q. | heard you testify that you
6 MR. KELLER: Mischaracterizes 6 believethat the reason why you were being
7 her testimony. 7 asked to recheck the pre-positives was because
8 THE WITNESS: That, | mean, 8 the antihuman IgG was being used in the assay
9 again, if | could refamiliarize myself 9 which was causing there to be more
10 at thistime | could speak better to 10 pre-positives. Isthat part of it right?
11 it. 11 A. It wascausing an enhancement
12 BY MR. SANGIAMO: 12 acrossthe assay.
13 Q. Didyou have a concern about 13 Q. Including to the pre-vaccination
14 theuse of antihuman 1gG in the plague 14 samples?
15 reduction neutralization assay at the time 15 A. Yes
16 that you wereworkingin Dr. Krah'slab? 16 Q. Which meant -- do | haveit
17 MR. KELLER: Asked and answered. | 17 right, which meant in your view it was
18 THE WITNESS: | was aware that 18 creating more pre-positives?
19 they had used it to enhance the 19 A. Itwould appear that it would.
20 reaction and -- so, yes. 20 Again, when -- based on paragraph 34 here,
21 BY MR. SANGIAMO: 21 therewastheorigina PRN methodology which
22 Q. You'reawarethat they used it 22 had unsatisfactory seroconversion results
23 to enhance the reaction? 23 based on the objective of greater than a 95
24 A. Your questionwasdid | have a 24 percent seroconversion rate. There was no
Page 422 Page 424
1 concernwhile!l wasin Dave'slab. So the 1 explanation for why the methodology that was
2 answerisyes. 2 originaly developed, the origina PRN, why
3 Q. Yes, you had aconcern, or yes, 3 that would have been abandoned and then moved
4 you were aware that they were using it to 4 onto the enhanced. Other than that, from the
5 enhancethe reaction? 5 datathat we've seen isthat the enhanced gave
6 A. Yes | was--yes, | had a 6 abetter seroconversion rate on the -- on
7 concern, yes. 7 those, at least -- if you exclude the
8 Q. Didyou expressthat concern to 8 pre-positives, on their initial testing of the
9 anyone? 9 methodology iswhat they discovered.
10 A. Through the -- through my 10 Q. You weren't around when the
11 concern of what was occurring because of the 11 decision was made to use antihuman IgG in the
12 enhancement. We were aso not only enhancing 12 assay. Correct?
13 the post-positive, but we were aso enhancing 13 A. Thatiscorrect.
14 the pre-positive. So enhancing pre-vaccinated 14 MR. KELLER: Asked and answered.
15 serum at the same time you are enhancing the 15 BY MR. SANGIAMO:
16 post-vaccinated serum. The fact that we were 16 Q. Sol guesswhat I'mtrying to
17 getting ahigh level of pre-positives, that 17 get at is, whether the concerns that you had
18 wasthe concern. | basically had raised a 18 in 2001 when you were working in Dr. Krah's
19 concern that, | guess -- sorry, I'm kind of 19 lab were about the use of antihuman I1gG itself
20 rambling on. 20 or whether the concerns were just that you
21 | raised a concern that we were 21 were being asked to check plaque counts?
22 being asked to recheck our countson 22 MR. KELLER: Objection. Asked
23 pre-positives which was attributed to the 23 and answered. Compound.
24 enhancement from the antibodies. 24 THE WITNESS: Sotheway |
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1 believe I've answered it earlier is 1 that you don't know whether you had back in
2 based on the pre-positives, the 2 2001. Right?

3 increased pre-positives, my belief was 3 A. Correct. | can't recal if |

4 that the use of the animal antibodies 4 did.

5 enhance that rate and if we were 5 Q. Sol assumeyou aso do not

6 changing the pre-positives, we would 6 recall whether you expressed that concern to
7 have been falsely showing a greater -- 7 anyoneback in 2001. Right?

8 greater seroconversion or agreater 8 A. Not specifically.

9 titer endpoint based on the 9 Q. Canyou elaborate on what that

10 manipulation of the pre-positive data 10 concernis?

11 used against the post-vaccinated 11 A. If thecontrol, if rabbit

12 samples. 12 antibodies were used in the mock contral, it

13 BY MR. SANGIAMO: 13 would normalize against the data.

14 Q. Didyou ever say to anyonein 14 Q. Do you know whether antihuman

15 2001 we should not be using antihuman IgG in| 15 1gG was used in the mock control ?

16 thisassay? 16 A. lcantrecdl if it wasor

17 A. 1donot recall saying that. 17 wasn't. Thedataor the -- again, from the

18 Q. Do you remember thinking that 18 procedure, it's not clear whether or not it

19 in2001? 19 was. Butl -- yeah, | believe at thetime

20 A. | remember thinking that we 20 that wereported this, we didn't recall that

21 shouldn't be recounting our original or 21 itwasbeing used. Wedidn' --

22 changing the data for the pre-positives. 22 Q. At thetimewhen who reported

23 Q. But do you remember thinking in 23  what?

24 2001 that antihuman 1gG should not be used in| 24 A. When wefiled the Complaint,

Page 426 Page 428
1 theassay? 1 our statement within the Complaint is that
2 MR. KELLER: Objection. Asked 2 therewas -- there was no proper control.
3 and answered. Y ou can answer again. 3 Q. Sowhat isthe date of your
4 THE WITNESS: I'mtryingto 4 knowledge right now as to whether antihuman
5 think how else| can explainit. If 5 19gG wasused in the mock control?
6 the data-- | just want to go back to 6 MR. KELLER: Hold on a second.
7 something | looked at before. 7 Y ou can answer that question if you can
8 S0, again, you're asking about 8 answer without disclosing
9 in 2001. 9 communications you had with your

10 BY MR. SANGIAMO: 10 counsel. If inorder to answer that

11 Q. Yes maam. 11 question you need to disclose

12 A. | think at thetimein 2001 my 12 communications you've had with your

13 -- at least my basic belief would have been 13 counsel, | instruct you not to answer

14 that if we at least were able to determine 14 as to communications you had with your

15 origina counts or provide origina counts, 15 counsel.

16 that at least we were measuring consistently | 16 THEWITNESS: Sointhe

17 against pre and post. | think the other 17 procedure it does not state whether or

18 concern | haveisthat the -- there was no 18 not animal antibodies are added to the

19 control for the animal antibodies. | can't 19 control. Beyond that, | cannot state

20 recall if that was a concern of mine at the 20 anything further that was discussed

21 timeor, you know, current. | basically gave |21 with my counsel.

22 two different answers there or two parts. 22 BY MR. SANGIAMO:

23 Q. Let'stak about the control 23 Q. What specificaly would be

24 concernyou just expressed. Thatisaconcern |24 accomplished by adding antihuman IgG to the
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1 mock controls? Yousaid it would normalize | 1 literature about whether an assay that is
2 it. What doesthat mean? 2 using antihuman IgG should use antihuman 1gG
3 A. If therewas non -- again, the 3 inthecontrol?
4 pre and the post serais calculated against 4 A. Notthat | recall.
5 themock control. So it would normalize 5 Q. Do you have any datato show
6 against that. 6 that thelack of use of antihuman IgG in the
7 Q. Istheconcern that the 7 control in the assay that was used in Protocol
8 antihuman IgG might itself neutralize virus? 8 007 had an impact on the assay results?
9 A. Itisaconcernthat it could 9 MR. KELLER: Objection. Vague
10 prevent -- let mejust get thisright. Not 10 and ambiguous. Overbroad. If
11 that it would necessarily neutralize virusbut | 11 requiring to answer that question would
12 impact the results of the plaques being 12 require you to disclose communications
13 formed. 13 with counsel, | instruct you not to
14 Q. How elsecould it impact the 14 answer. To the extent that you can
15 result of the plaque being form other than 15 answer independent of communications
16 neutralizing virus? 16 with counsel, you can answer.
17 A. | can't say that without having 17 THE WITNESS: | do not have, |
18 that information or that datato test through 18 specifically do not have data to say
19 acontrol. | don't know. 19 whether it does or whether it doesn't.
20 Q. Haveyou ever participated in 20 | also cannot answer specific to
21 the decision about whether to include 21 information discussed with my counsel.
22 antihuman IgG in the control in an assay? 22 - - -
23 MR. KELLER: Objection. 23 (Exhibit Wlochowski-20,
24 Overbroad. 24 Sensitive Neutralization Test for Virus
Page 430 Page 432
1 THE WITNESS: Could you restate 1 Antibody article, was marked for
2 the question? 2 identification.)
3 BY MR. SANGIAMO: 3 - - -
4 Q. Haveyou ever -- strike that. 4 BY MR. SANGIAMO:
5 When an assay is being designed 5 Q. Ms. Wlochowski, you've just
6 someone needs to decide whether to include 6 been handed what has been marked as Exhibit 20
7 antihuman IgG in the control. Right? 7 which was among the documents that you
8 MR. KELLER: Objection. Lack 8 produced from your own files.
9 of foundation. Overbroad. 9 A. Okay.
10 THE WITNESS: Whenanassay is | 10 Q. Andasisevident here, thisis
11 being designed, yes, somebody hasto 11 ajourna article entitled Sensitive
12 define what the parameters are aswe 12 Neutraization Test For Virus Antibody. Do
13 caled it before. 13 you seethat?
14 BY MR. SANGIAMO: 14 A. Whereareyou referring to?
15 Q. Ifanassayisgoingtobe 15 Q. I'mjustlooking at thetitle
16 using an antihuman 1gG, one of those 16 of thearticle.
17 parametersiswhether the antihuman IgG is 17 A. Sorry. Yes.
18 going to be used in the control. Right? 18 Q. Do you know when it isthat you
19 A. Thatiscorrect, yes. 19 obtained acopy of this article?
20 Q. Haveyou ever participated in 20 MR. KELLER: Objection. Lack
21 that decision of whether antihuman IgG should| 21 of foundation.
22 beused in the control? 22 MR. SANGIAMO: What is -- what?
23 A. Notthat | recal, no. 23 BY MR. SANGIAMO:
24 Q. Haveyou ever read any 24 Q. Did this document come from
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1 vyourfiles? 1 document speaks for itself.
2 A. lcantrecdl. It may have. 2 THE WITNESS: That's what the
3 MR. KELLER: It could have come 3 document is stating.
4 from Steve Krahling's files. 4 BY MR. SANGIAMO:
5 MR. SANGIAMO: According to 5 Q. Areyou ableto assess based on
6 what you told us, it came from her 6 thisfirst several sentences whether this
7 files. 7 document represents researchers at the FDA
8 MR. KELLER: Y ou haven't 8 describing a method of a mumps plaque
9 established afoundation. That's all 9 reduction neutralization assay that uses
10 I'm objecting to. 10 antihuman I1gG?
11 BY MR. SANGIAMO: 11 MR. KELLER: Objection.
12 Q. Doyou recal when you came 12 MR. SANGIAMO: |I'm sorry.
13 into the possession of this document? 13 MR. BEGLEITER: | wasreading.
14 A. If -- okay, let methink. | 14 | wasn't talking to anybody.
15 was-- 15 MR. KELLER: You need to read
16 MR. KELLER: If you need to 16 thewhole article, feel free.
17 take time to review the document, you 17 BY MR. SANGIAMO:
18 can do that. 18 Q. Youfeel youwould need to read
19 THE WITNESS: Without having 19 thewhole articleto figure out whether this
20 thoroughly gone through this, my guess | 20 paper is describing the use of antihuman 1gG
21 would be that -- 21 inaplague reduction neutralization assay for
22 MR. KELLER: Don't guess. 22  mumps?
23 THE WITNESS: | can't -- you 23 MR. KELLER: Let her read it.
24 know, | can't say specifically when | 24 If you want to represent that is what
Page 434 Page 436
1 got it without making a guess at when | 1 it says, you can represent it. But
2 got it. 2 it'sfair to let her read a document if
3 BY MR. SANGIAMO: 3 you put it in front of her.
4 Q. Do you know if it waswhile you 4 MR. SANGIAMO: Go off the
5 wereworking at Merck? 5 record. You can read it.
6 A. Again, if | did, that would be 6 VIDEOGRAPHER: Thetimeis
7 aguess. 7 2:10. Going off the video record.
8 Q. Thefirst sentence of the paper 8 - - -
9 says, "A sensitive mumps virus plague 9 (A recess was taken.)
10 neutralization test has been devel oped based 10 - - -
11 on the potentiation of virus-antibody 11 VIDEOGRAPHER: Thetimeis
12 complexes by heterologous anti-immunoglobins, | 12 2:23. Back on the video record.
13 (AIG)." 13 BY MR. SANGIAMO:
14 Do you see that? 14 Q. Ms. Wlochowski, you've had a
15 A. Yes 15 chanceto read the paper right now, Exhibit 20.
16 Q. "Theenhanced neutralization 16 A. Yes
17 test was approximately 100 times more 17 Q. Haveyou read it before?
18 sensitive than the conventional neutralization 18 A. | can'trecdlif | have.
19 test or the hemagglutination-inhibition test." 19 Q. Asyouwerereading it just
20 Did | read that correctly? 20 now, did you understand it?
21 A. Yes 21 A. Yes
22 Q. Thispaper was published by 22 Q. Whatisit that these researchers
23 fiveresearchersat the FDA. Correct? 23 arereporting on?
24 MR. KELLER: Objection. The 24 MR. KELLER: Objection. Vague
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1 and ambiguous. Overbroad. The 1 Q. | asked the question of whether
2 document speaks for itself. Seeking 2 you disagreed with any of the conclusionsin
3 expert testimony from alay witness. 3 the paper. I'm not sure you answered that.
4 THE WITNESS: The document 4 Do you disagree? Isthere anything in there
5 speaksfor itself. Thereisanumber 5 that you disagree with?
6 of statements made throughout the 6 MR. KELLER: Asked and answered.
7 document. 7 She has tetified.
8 BY MR. SANGIAMO: 8 BY MR. SANGIAMO:
9 Q. Did they describe the use of 9 Q. Do you have anything to add to
10 antihuman IgG in amumps neutralization assay 10 your prior answer in terms of whether thereis
11 asameans of making the assay more sensitive? 11 anything in here that you disagree with?
12 MR. KELLER: Objection. The 12 MR. KELLER: Same objection.
13 document speaks for itself. Lack of 13 THE WITNESS: No.
14 foundation. Seeking expert testimony 14 BY MR. SANGIAMO:
15 from alay witness. 15 Q. Asyouread this, did you feel
16 THE WITNESS: Again, I'll 16 that these FDA researchers were engaged in
17 repeat by saying that the document 17 datamanipulation in describing this methodol ogy?
18 speaksfor itself. SoI'll just leave 18 MR. KELLER: Objection. Lack
19 it at that. Thereisalot of 19 of foundation.
20 conclusions drawn from the document. 20 THE WITNESS: | do not have
21 BY MR. SANGIAMO: 21 copies of their data. So | can't say
22 Q. Didyou disagree with any of 22 whether they did or they didn't.
23 the conclusions? 23 BY MR. SANGIAMO:
24 A. Thereare statements that are 24 Q. Do you have any reason to
Page 438 Page 440
1 madewhereit states, "The mechanism by which 1 believethat they did?
2 anti-immunoglobin enhances the neutralizing 2 MR. KELLER: Objection. Calls
3 capacity of immune serais not fully 3 for speculation. Lack of foundation.
4 understood." 4 THE WITNESS: | can't speculate
5 So there are, again, some 5 on that.
6 conclusions drawn. However, there are some 6 BY MR.SANGIAMO:
7 statements made, for instance, " Studies on 7 Q. Didyou fed that the mere
8 cross-reactivity of antibody to viruses of the 8 methodology itself constitutes manipulation?
9 paramyxovirus group with mumps virusin the 9 MR. KELLER: Objection. Vague
10 enhanced neut test are currently in progress.” 10 and ambiguous. Lack of foundation.
11 So it makes references to other 11 Seeking expert witness testimony from a
12 studiesaswell as| want to say that based on 12 layperson. Callsfor speculation.
13 the different studies throughout the document 13 THE WITNESS: Again, to me that
14 or different referencesit's making. I'm not 14 would be speculation for me to answer
15 sure, | thought | saw that there was a small 15 that.
16 sample size used in the study. 16 BY MR. SANGIAMO:
17 So there's -- so provides some 17 Q. Becauseyou lack the expertise?
18 information, but, again, it's a paper that the 18 A |-
19 expertswould have to -- that conducted the 19 MR. KELLER: Mischaracterizes
20 study would have to speak to. 20 her testimony. Y ou can answer.
21 Q. Just the experts who conducted 21 THE WITNESS: Again, | haven't
22 the study or expertsin the field generally? 22 seen the data would be my response.
23 A. | would also reference experts 23 BY MR. SANGIAMO:
24 inthefield. 24 Q. Soyour point isyou don't know
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1 whether this article accurately describes the 1 testimony from alay witness. Calls
2 underlying data from the researcher's work. 2 for speculation.
3 Right? 3 THE WITNESS: Thisquestionis
4 MR. KELLER: Objection. 4 different from the previous question in
5 Mischaracterizes her testimony. 5 that --
6 THE WITNESS: Can you ask the 6 BY MR. SANGIAMO:
7 guestion again? 7 Q. Wadl, I'mtrying to -- what |
8 BY MR.SANGIAMO: 8 can'ttell, frankly, in your answersis
9 Q. Isthe point you're making that 9 whether you are responding to my questionsin
10 because you haven't seen the underlying data, | 10 terms of whether the underlying data generated
11 you don't know if thisarticleis accurately 11 inthesetestsisaccurately described in the
12 describing the underlying data? 12 paper, whether you're talking about that, or
13 MR. KELLER: Objection. 13 whether you are talking about the methodol ogy
14 Mischaracterizes her testimony. You're |14 itself. That'swhy | asked my follow-up
15 asking her to speculate about -- 15 question. | wastrying to get that.
16 MR. SANGIAMO: I'masking what | 16 A. Maybethat'swhy I'm confused
17 her point was. 17 inanswering. To methey go hand in hand.
18 MR. KELLER: No, you are 18 Q. Let'sassumethat the dataare
19 recharacterizing -- 19 accurately described in the paper.
20 BY MR. SANGIAMO: 20 MR. KELLER: Objection. Seeks
21 Q. Did] state your point 21 ahypothetical.
22 accurately? If | didn't, just tell mel 22 BY MR. SANGIAMO:
23 didnt, that'sfine. 23 Q. Then would you consider the
24 A. | keeplosing track of your 24 methodology described in here to constitute
Page 442 Page 444
1 actual question, sorry, because of the back 1 manipulation?
2 andforth. 2 MR. KELLER: Objection. Vague
3 Q. Sure. Let metryitagan. 3 and ambiguous as to manipulation.
4 A. Sorry. 4 Seeks an expert opinion from alay
5 Q. That'sfine. 5 witness. Overbroad. Lack of
6 Does the methodology described 6 foundation. Seeksalegal conclusion.
7 inhereitsalf, the methodology itself, 7 THE WITNESS: | think I've
8 constitute manipulation in your opinion? 8 already answered.
9 MR. KELLER: Objection. Seeks 9 BY MR. SANGIAMO:
10 alegal conclusion. Seeks expert 10 Q. You've answered the best asyou
11 opinion from alayperson. Callsfor 11 can?
12 speculation. Lack of foundation. You 12 A. Yes
13 can answer. 13 MR. KELLER: We're at about an
14 THE WITNESS: | don't have a 14 hour. Do you want to take break?
15 reason to believe that it was 15 MR. SANGIAMO: Sure.
16 manipulated, but | cannot confirm if it 16 VIDEOGRAPHER: Thetimeisnow
17 has or it hasn't. 17 2:32. Going off the video record.
18 BY MR. SANGIAMO: 18 - - -
19 Q. Nothing in here suggested to 19 (A recess was taken.)
20 you that the process that they describeis 20 - - -
21 inherently manipulative. True? 21 VIDEOGRAPHER: Thetimeisnow
22 MR. KELLER: Objection. Lack 22 2:51. Thisbeginsdiscfour. You may
23 of foundation. Vague and ambiguous. 23 proceed.
24 Seeks alegal conclusion. Seeks expert 24 BY MR. SANGIAMO:
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1 Q. Ms. Wlochowski, you gave 1 A. Yes
2 testimony on severa occasions over the course| 2 Q. When you refer to him having
3 of your deposition about plaque countsbeing | 3 given that direction, do you have in mind him
4 changed to pre-positive samples. Do you 4 giving the direction to the lab as a group or
5 recdl that? 5 areyou referring to instances where he may
6 A. Yes 6 have said that to individual lab members or
7 Q. What doyou recall Dr. Krah -- 7 something else?
8 A. I'msorry, can you repeat 8 MR. KELLER: Objection.
9 again-- | said yesbeforel think | heard 9 Overbroad.
10 something different. 10 THE WITNESS: Since he gaveit
11 Q. | just wanted to orient you to 11 on different occasions, | recall him
12 your prior testimony on the topic of plague 12 saying it to me. | recall him saying
13 counts being changed on samples that were 13 it to other staff members. |, myself,
14 pre-positive. Therewas no actual question 14 at a staff meeting, you know, brought
15 other than to orient you. 15 up the fact that, you know, the changes
16 A. I'msorry. Didn't mean to say 16 were being made on focusing on
17 question. Yes. 17 pre-positives which is falsifying data.
18 Q. What do you recal Dr. Krah 18 Making the statement that we're not
19 saying as regards plague count changes to 19 blinded so, therefore, being selective
20 pre-positive samples? 20 over what we're going back to recount
21 MR. KELLER: Objection. Asked 21 based on what the expectation is.
22 and answered. Y ou can answer again. 22 BY MR. SANGIAMO:
23 THE WITNESS: From my previous | 23 Q. Canyou give me the most
24 responses, again, hisindication to us 24 specific recollection you have of how he
Page 446 Page 448
1 was that the -- it is not expected to 1 described what it isthat you were supposed to
2 have pre-positives in unvaccinated 2 doif you did encounter a pre-positive?
3 population, that although it does 3 A. Hewould ask usto check our
4 occur, it doesn't -- you know, it's not 4 results.
5 occurring often. 1'm not quoting him 5 Q. Okay. Togo back and check to
6 on that, but that is the direction he 6 make sure the count was accurate. |sthat how
7 gavethelab. 7 hewould say it?
8 BY MR. SANGIAMO: 8 A. Again, | don't recal his
9 Q. Wadl, sofaral youvesaidis 9 specific words, but | believe that iswhat he
10 that he said it was not expected to have 10 wasimplying.
11 pre-positivesin an unvaccinated population. |11 Q. Thatiswhat you understood him
12 Andthat it does occur but not very often. | 12 tobesaying?
13 redlize you were not quoting him directly. 13 A. Yes
14 But then was there somekind of direction he |14 MR. KELLER: Could | get the
15 gavetothelabin light of that? 15 last question and answer back? Two
16 A. Based on that, yes, he hason 16 last questions and answers.
17 occasion asked to go back and recheck counts | 17 - - -
18 whereit resulted in apre-positive. 18 (The court reporter read the
19 Q. Isthat something that you 19 pertinent part of the record.)
20 heard him say? 20 - - -
21 A. Yes 21 BY MR. SANGIAMO:
22 Q. How many times? 22 Q. You described a staff meeting
23 A. | would say it was quite often. 23 inyour testimony a moment ago where, as|
24 Q. Morethan five? 24 understood it, you brought up that changes
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1 were being made to pre-positives and you 1 fraud.
2 considered that to be falsification | think is 2 BY MR. SANGIAMO:
3 thewordsyou used in your testimony just now? 3 Q. Youjust referred to changing
4 A. Yes 4 data, and | gather what you were referring to
5 Q. And do you think that isthe 5 there was going back to check a count and then
6 word you used at that staff meeting? 6 changingitif you came up with -- if you
7 A. | believel stated that it was 7 counted a different number of plaques on that
8 fraud. 8 count as compared to what was counted on the
9 Q. Youthink fraud isthe word 9 first count. Do | havethat right?
10 that isused? 10 A. That'scorrect.
11 A. Yes 11 Q. Doyou agreethat -- strike
12 Q. Why isthat fraud? Why isit 12 that.
13 fraud to check the pre-positives? 13 Do you have an opinion asto
14 A. Becauseyou'reonly selectively 14 whether a pre-positive isto be expected or
15 checking your pre-positives. You're not 15 not?
16 checkingthe entire assay. Again, if the 16 MR. KELLER: Objection.
17 method was validated and analysts were 17 BY MR. SANGIAMO:
18 qualified, then the original results should 18 Q. Do you have an opinion on that?
19 serveto provide aresult. 19 MR. KELLER: Objection. Vague
20 Q. Soyouthought it wasfraud in 20 and ambiguous. Seeks expert opinion
21 thesensethat if only the pre-positives were 21 from alayperson. Lack of foundation
22 checked, that would bias the results? 22 and overbroad.
23 A. I'mtrying to think. So the-- 23 THE WITNESS: | would defer to
24 MR. KELLER: Objection. 24 an expert opinion on that.
Page 450 Page 452
1 Overbroad. Y ou can answer. 1 BY MR.SANGIAMO:
2 THE WITNESS: Can you provide, 2 Q. I'mgoingto ask adlightly
3 | guess provide a different way of 3 different question using aterm you may or may
4 asking the questions. I'm not quite 4 not have encountered in your assay work. Do
5 sure... 5 you have an opinion on whether a pre-positive
6 BY MR.SANGIAMO: 6 would be considered an abhorrent result?
7 Q. | asked youwhy it'sfraud to 7 MR. KELLER: Objection. Vague
8 check only the pre-positives, and part of your | 8 and ambiguous. Overbroad. Lack of
9 response was because you're only selectively | 9 foundation.
10 checking -- I'm paraphrasing, selectively 10 THE WITNESS: My opinion on
11 checking pre-positives, you're not checking 11 abhorrent resultsis that it could be
12 thewhole assay. I'm trying to get at why 12 seen in both a positive or a negative
13 that amountsto fraud. Canyou elaborateat | 13 in either the pre- or the
14 dl onwhy that isfraud? 14 post-vaccination.
15 MR. KELLER: Objectiontoform. |15 BY MR.SANGIAMO:
16 BY MR. SANGIAMO: 16 Q. What does an abhorrent result
17 Q. And| suggested to you that 17 mean to you? What does that term mean to you?
18 perhapsit's amatter of biasing the results, 18 A. | guess| wouldrefertoit as
19 but that's for you to say, not me. 19 an unexpected result. Let methink if | can
20 MR. KELLER: Same objection. 20 further definethat. Yeah, an unexpected
21 THE WITNESS: Yes, inmy 21 result.
22 opinion, if you are selectively 22 MR. KELLER: Let meinterpose
23 changing data to reach a desired 23 an objection, lack of foundation.
24 outcome, then | would consider that 24 BY MR. SANGIAMO:
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1 Q. Toyour knowledge, based on 1 because it may not be a count, but it's
2 assaysthat you've worked with, are abhorrent | 2 basically trying to bring your
3 resultsever excluded from final testing 3 abhorrent result into -- | guess,
4  results? 4 testing into what you want it to be
5 MR. KELLER: Objection. 5 versus taking the abhorrent result or
6 Overbroad. Lack of foundation. Seeks 6 at that point to me it would be
7 expert opinion from alay witness. 7 considered invalid sample result and,
8 Y ou can answer. 8 therefore, the whole sample would be
9 THE WITNESS: In my experience, | 9 repeated.
10 | have seen defined in methods what is 10 So in other words, I've never
11 an abhorrent result and how they may or |11 seen, in my experience, it's either the
12 may not be excluded based on certain 12 single result out of the replicatesis
13 criteria 13 excluded based on certain criteria or
14 BY MR. SANGIAMO: 14 if it goes beyond a single result and
15 Q. Isitever, inyour experience, 15 it's abhorrent as a whole, you wouldn't
16 donethat abhorrent results would be retested? | 16 be taking that data that you had gotten
17 MR. KELLER: Objection. 17 on that abhorrent result and
18 Overbroad. Lack of foundation. 18 manipulated and changed it to comeinto
19 MR. SANGIAMO: Let merephrase |19 something that is not abhorrent.
20 that. Areyou done, Jeff? 20 BY MR. SANGIAMO:
21 MR. KELLER: If you're goingto 21 Q. And asapplied here, "manipulated
22 strike the question and start over, 22 and changed it" would be to check the accuracy
23 then | can stop objecting. But if 23 of the plague count. Right?
24 you're not, I'll keep going. 24 MR. KELLER: Objection. Vague
Page 454 Page 456
1 MR. SANGIAMO: Wecanhavean | 1 and ambiguous. Unintelligible.
2 agreement when you object to the next 2 Overbroad. Lacksfoundation. Seeksan
3 question welll carry over your 3 expert opinion from alay witness.
4 objections to the next question so you 4 THE WITNESS: | havea
5 don't have to repeat that. 5 difficult time and, again, an expert
6 BY MR.SANGIAMO: 6 witness can expand on this, but | have
7 Q. Inyour experiencein running 7 adifficult time saying that you would
8 assayswith which you're familiar, are 8 check the accuracy of aresult on a
9 abhorrent results ever subjected to retest? 9 method that is validated.
10 MR. KELLER: Objection. 10 BY MR. SANGIAMO:
11 Overbroad. Lack of foundation. 11 Q. The counting of plagues can be
12 THEWITNESS: | cangiveyouan |12 subjective. Right?
13 example in my experience, but | would 13 A. Itcanbe, yes.
14 not limit it to just this example 14 Q. You couldlook at aplague
15 because I'm sure there are other expert 15 count one day and then look at it another day
16 explanations for it aswell. Butin my 16 and get adifferent count the second day.
17 experience, if thereisreplicate 17 Agreed?
18 testing, there may be acriteriafor 18 MR. KELLER: Objection. Cals
19 exclusion of a particular result out of 19 for speculation. Lack of foundation.
20 those replicates. If -- I've never 20 THE WITNESS: Any -- either a
21 seen, that | can recall, an abhorrent 21 plague count or any result really could
22 result in itself being recounted. | 22 have variability within itself. But,
23 would expect to seeit recounted in 23 again, that should be factored into the
24 that you were looking at the data again 24 precision of the methodology. Soin
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1 this case, if you're speaking to 1 that the number of, whether you want to
2 variability between analysts, you know, 2 call it rechecks or recounts, basically
3 counting versus variability between 3 in the end changes were made to
4 analyst themselves, | would refer back 4 pre-positives that occurred within the
5 to not just accuracy but repeatability 5 data -- within a portion of the data
6 and precision of the methodol ogy. 6 set more often than -- it basically
7 BY MR. SANGIAMO: 7 occurred on a good portion of the --
8 Q. Thereisvariability in 8 sorry. Chopping up my words.
9 determining plaque count data points that is 9 There was a portion of that
10 greater than, say, the variability in reading 10 data set that | had reviewed, just to
11 ELISA results. Agreed? 11 say it like that, that showed that
12 A. Yes 12 there were changes made to pre-positive
13 Q. Doyou have any experiencein 13 data on a significant number of the
14 thevalidation of aplaque assay? 14 assays that were performed.
15 MR. KELLER: Objection. 15 BY MR. SANGIAMO:
16 THE WITNESS: | potentially may | 16 Q. | wanttomakesurel
17 have during the course -- again, I'm 17 understand what you mean when you talk about
18 not sure exactly when the completion of |18 changes being made to pre-positive data. Do
19 the enhanced PRN that was being 19 you mean changes to plague counts on samples
20 conducted at Merck, when that 20 that on original count were pre-positive that
21 completed. So | cannot say if | wasa 21 resulted in achangeto pre-negative or do you
22 part of that. But | guess| would also 22 just mean any change, any changeto a
23 add that because there is variability 23 pre-positive?
24 in something like a cell-based assay, 24 A. Any change madeto -- it was
Page 458 Page 460
1 you are running replicate wells. Soin 1 changesfrom apre-positive to a pre-negative.
2 thisinstance, in this enhanced PRN, 2 Q. Andyou're saying that that
3 it'srunintriplicate wells. So that 3 occurred more frequently than achangeto a
4 would be -- the intent of that isto 4 post-vaccination sample --
5 account for the variability in either 5 A. Correct.
6 the -- well, in many aspects of the 6 Q. --that would causeitto go
7 assay being conducted. 7 from positive to negative or vice versa? Is
8 BY MR. SANGIAMO: 8 that what you're saying?
9 Q. Outside of what you just 9 A. If I recal correctly, there
10 referred to regarding Merck, have you ever 10 was no changes made to the post samples.
11 participated in the validation of a plague 11 Q. When you say no changes made to
12 assay? 12 the post samples, you mean there were no
13 MR. KELLER: Asked and answered. |13 plaque count changes to any post sample or do
14 THE WITNESS: Not that | 14 you mean something more specific; that is,
15 recall, no. 15 there were no plaque count changes to
16 BY MR. SANGIAMO: 16 post-vaccination samplesthat resulted in a
17 Q. Isityour belief that the only 17 different seroconversion outcome?
18 plaque counts that were checked in Protocol | 18 A. Thelatter. Soitwasno
19 007 were those for pre-positives? 19 changes were made to the results, no
20 MR. KELLER: Objection. Lack 20 pre-negative -- no pre-negatives were changed
21 of foundation. Overbroad. 21 to pre-positives. No post negatives or
22 THE WITNESS: | cannot say that 22 post-positives were changed to the opposite.
23 No pre-negatives or post-negative or 23 Q. Sothere could have been some
24 positive was rechecked, but | can say 24 changesto the post-positives or post
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1 negativesor pre-negatives, but they just 1 requested to do that and check that. And
2 weren't enough to convert them to a different 2 redlly for meit was a matter of
3 statusthat would impact whether that sample 3 understanding, well, if it didn't seem to be a
4 had seroconverted. Do | have that right? 4 bigdeal, then let's just look at the data and
5 A. That could bethe case. Yeah, 5 seewhat it'stelling us. So that was my
6 | don't remember if there were or were not any 6 intent of looking at the data and seeing if
7 changes made in the data set. 7 there wasabiasthat occurred.
8 - - - 8 Q. Youweretestifying earlier
9 (Exhibit Wlochowski-21, 9 about Dr. Krah telling people to check the
10 Handwritten document, RELATOR_00001025 | 10  plague counts for pre-positives. When he did
11 & 26, was marked for identification.) 11 that, would he make the request in genera
12 - - - 12 termsor inyour experience was it a matter of
13 BY MR. SANGIAMO: 13 him pointing to a particular sample and asking
14 Q. Ms. Wlochowski, you've just 14 theanalyst to go recheck that sample?
15 been handed what has been marked as 15 A. Asfarasl canrecadl, it was
16 Exhibit 21. Do you recognize that document? 16 aparticular sample.
17 A. |do. 17 Q. Andthat'show it occurredin
18 Q. Whatisit? 18 your case? By your case, | mean the times
19 A. Itis-- how to describeit. 19 when he asked you to check pre-positives?
20 Itisasummary of adataset from different 20 A. Yes
21 experiments that were run just to summarize 21 Q. Isthat what you witnessed with
22 theresults, the results of pre-positives and 22 others?
23 whether or not they were changed. 23 A. Yes
24 Q. Inyour testimony afew minutes 24 Q. Isityour testimony that you
Page 462 Page 464
1 ago you referred to a subset of the data that 1 have no recollection of him asking you to
2 you had looked at. |sthe subset of the data 2 recheck anything other than a pre-positive?
3 towhich you'rereferring described herein 3 A. | can't say that he didn't ask
4 this Exhibit 21? 4 that. Yeah, | can't say that that wasthe
5 A. Yes | believe so. 5 case
6 Q. Who performed the analysis that 6 Q. Isthat because you don't
7 ledtothe creation of this document? 7 recall whether he did or he didn't, or is that
8 A. Itwasjointly performed by 8 because you remember that he did ask you to
9 mysef and Steve Krahling. 9 check other plates?
10 Q. Tomakeit easier for usto 10 A. | cansay moreinthelines
11 talk about this, can we call this an audit? 11 that sometimes there were questionable results
12 A. Sure 12 or, again, going back to what you were talking
13 Q. Whoseideawasit to perform 13 about, what you would consider an abhorrent
14 that audit? 14 result. Thereplicatesdidn't align, or if
15 A. | bdieveit wasmy idea 15 there were some anomalies with the monolayers,
16 Q. What do you recall about the 16 thingslikethat. So | wouldn't excludeit.
17 initial discussion between you and 17 Q. Do you know whether there was
18 Mr. Krahling about this audit? 18 checking of plague counts by othersin the lab
19 A. Just that, you know, again, | 19 on samples that were not pre-positive? Do you
20 was questioning about being asked to recheck | 20 have knowledge of that?
21 plates based on pre-negatives as were -- 21 MR. KELLER: Objection. Vague
22 sorry, pre-positives, as were others. And 22 and ambiguous. Overbroad.
23 basicaly getting no -- | don't know how to 23 THE WITNESS: Can you repeat
24  explainit. You know, continuing to be 24 the question?
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1 BY MR.SANGIAMO: 1 Mischaracterizes her testimony.
2 Q. Do you have knowledge of 2 THE WITNESS: What would be
3 whether there was checking of plague counts by 3 entered is the crossed out number.
4  othersin the lab to samples other than 4 BY MR. SANGIAMO:
5 pre-positives? 5 Q. Andthis-- you would create a
6 MR. KELLER: Objection. Vague 6 brand new worksheet for this assay? In other
7 and ambiguous. Overbroad. 7 words, would you enter in every data point for
8 THE WITNESS: My knowledge 8 the assay when you were conducting this audit?
9 would just be drawn from that if he 9 MR. KELLER: Overbroad.
10 guided me to do that, he would guide 10 THE WITNESS: Repeat the
11 others based on applying the same 11 guestion.
12 rationale what | just described in my 12 BY MR. SANGIAMO:
13 previous question. 13 Q. When you were conducting the
14 BY MR. SANGIAMO: 14 audit for agiven assay, would you enter every
15 Q. Sothat's an assumption on your 15 datapoint for that assay?
16 part. Right? 16 A. Every datapoint, yes, on the
17 A. Yes. 17 counting sheet. So with the -- what we just
18 Q. If welook at Exhibit 21, which 18 described, so the crossed out, not -- yes, so
19 isthe documentation of the audit, the audit 19 thecrossed out results.
20 you and Mr. Krahling performed, you see the 20 Q. | gotyou. Andthendidyou
21 results. What wasthe nature of the 21 savethat?
22 underlying data for this? 22 A. 1didnot saveit myself. |
23 A. | wantto say it wasthe cell 23 don't recdl if that was saved by Steve.
24 count sheets. 24 Q. Didyou printit out?
Page 466 Page 468
1 Q. What did you do with the cell 1 A. | don'trecal if he printed it
2 count sheets? 2 out.
3 A. If | remember correctly, we 3 Q. Butyoudidn't?
4 took that and entered into the Excel workbook | 4 A. I'msorry?
5 to populate the data. 5 Q. Youdidnot print it out. Right?
6 Q. Youwould populate the Excel 6 A. Correct.
7 workbook with the data originaly counted? Is| 7 Q. Ifwetakealook at, let's
8 that theidea? 8 say, thethird row down, and reading across we
9 A. Sointhisinstance, original 9 see MKY under the column titled "counted by"
10 count would mean what was written on the 10 Right?
11 counting sheet. Again, whether or not there | 11 A. Yes
12 were changes between the plates and what was| 12 Q. That indicates that the person
13 entered on the counting sheet, we didn't go 13 withtheinitials MKY did the original count
14 back to the plates, we only went back tothe |14 on that?
15 point of the counting sheets. So astherewas | 15 A. Correct.
16 across out on the counting sheet, wewould | 16 Q. Reading acrossto theright you
17 factor that into the calculation in the 17 say assay number 758-00. Correct?
18 workbook. 18 A. Correct.
19 Q. If you encountered a data point 19 Q. Then it saysthree pre-positives.
20 that had been crossed out in the counting 20 Right?
21 sheet, then what you would enter into the 21 A. Correct.
22 workbook was the crossed out number, not the | 22 Q. Andthenthereisablank next
23 new number. Isthat right? 23 tothat which in the case of this particular
24 MR. KELLER: Objection. 24 assay means that none of the pre-positives
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Page 471

1 werechanged. Right? 1 subset of the data. So we did not, at
2 MR. KELLER: Objection. 2 least | did not, | don't recall that
3 Overbroad. 3 there was anything that Steve had done
4 THE WITNESS: What it meansis 4 to calculate that.
5 that none of the pre-positives, based 5 BY MR. SANGIAMO:
6 on -- either were not changed or the 6 Q. So, for example, if you look at
7 result of changing them still resulted 7 theassay that we were looking at a moment
8 in three pre-positives. 8 ago, 759-00 which had six pre-positives and
9 BY MR. SANGIAMO: 9 two pre-positives were changed to
10 Q. Andthenif wego to the next 10 pre-negative, you didn't, and as far asyou
11 line, we see an assay that was counted by JD | 11  know, Steve didn't try and determine whether
12 and that was assay 759-00. Inthat instance, |12 thosetwo that were changed were seroconverters.
13 thereweresix pre-positives. Right? 13 Right?
14 A. Uh-huh. 14 A. Not to my recollection.
15 Q. Andwhat we seeisthat for two 15 Q. If they hadn't been seroconverters,
16 of those six, there were changesto the plaque | 16 then that would actually be detrimental to the
17 count that resulted in them becoming 17 overall seroconversion rate in the assay.
18 pre-negative. Right? 18 Right?
19 A. Correct. 19 MR. KELLER: Objection. Lack
20 Q. Andfor the other four, either 20 of foundation. Callsfor speculation.
21 there were no changes at all or whatever 21 THE WITNESS: | can't answer
22 changesthere were did not cause it to convert | 22 that in the overall set of data
23 from being pre-positive to pre-negative? 23 because, again, it wasjust aportion
24 A. Correct. 24 of the data.
Page 470 Page 472
1 Q. Now, do you have any way of 1 BY MR.SANGIAMO:
2 addressing the question of why it is that 2 Q. Itwould have been detrimental,
3 thosefour pre-positivesin 759-00 that did 3 you don't know how detrimental, but it would
4 not convert to pre-negative and the three 4 have been detrimental ?
5 pre-positivesin 758 that did not convert to 5 MR. KELLER: Objection. Vague
6 pre-negative, why it is that those were not 6 and ambiguous. Lack of foundation.
7 changed to pre-negative? 7 Argumentative.
8 MR. KELLER: Objection. Lack 8 THE WITNESS: I'm trying to
9 of foundation. Callsfor speculation. 9 think through the -- so it may or may
10 THE WITNESS: It would bea 10 not have been, just based on the fact
11 speculation that no additional plagques 11 that, again, that either if
12 were ableto beidentified, or if they 12 pre-positives were excluded from the
13 were didn't change the resullts. 13 study, and so, therefore, it decreases
14 BY MR. SANGIAMO: 14 your overall sample size, versus having
15 Q. Didyouand Mr. Krahlingin 15 two more results, maybe one of them
16 conducting this audit attempt to determine 16 gave you a seroconversion, the other
17 what the impact was of these conversions from| 17 onedidnt, at least it increased your
18 pre-positive to pre-negative on the overall 18 samplesize. Soreally | can't speak
19 assay -- sorry, on the overall seroconversion | 19 to whether or not it would have been
20 rate? 20 detrimental overall.
21 MR. KELLER: Objection. Vague |21 BY MR.SANGIAMO:
22 and ambiguous. Overbroad. Lacks 22 Q. How isseroconversion
23 foundation. 23 calculated in the study?
24 THEWITNESS: Thisisonly a 24 MR. KELLER: Objection. Lack
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1 of foundation. Overbroad. 1 atthetime?
2 THE WITNESS: Canyou elaborate | 2 MR. KELLER: Objection. Vague
3 on that? 3 and ambiguous. Overbroad. Lack of
4 BY MR.SANGIAMO: 4 foundation.
5 Q. I'mnotsurel can. Doyou 5 THE WITNESS: | can't recall.
6 know what formulawas used to calculate a 6 BY MR.SANGIAMO:
7 seroconversion rate in Protocol 0077 7 Q. If youdidn't know how the
8 MR. KELLER: Objection. 8 seroconversion rate was calculated at the
9 BY MR.SANGIAMO: 9 time, then did you have any means of
10 Q. If youdon't know, you don't 10 evaluating what the impact would be of
11  know. 11 conversions from pre-positive to pre-negative
12 A. I'mnot clear that | would 12 on the seroconversion ratesin the study?
13  know. 13 MR. KELLER: Objection.
14 Q. Youdon't know? 14 Argumentative. Seeking expert
15 A. I'mtrying to think this 15 testimony from alay witness. Vague
16 through. In the protocol, | mean, | don't 16 and ambiguous. Overbroad.
17 know the specific of the calculation in the 17 THE WITNESS: | will defer to
18 protocol. Protocol 007 iswhat you're 18 an expert witness for fully answering
19 referring to? 19 that question. Again, my intent here
20 Q. Yes. Youdon't know it today. 20 isto, with this audit, was also to
21 Right? 21 provide information around data that
22 MR. KELLER: Asshe'ssitting 22 was being changed and whether or not
23 here today? 23 there was a pattern of changing results
24 BY MR. SANGIAMO: 24 in a pre-positive readout.
Page 474 Page 476
1 Q. Isthat what your testimony was 1 BY MR. SANGIAMO:
2 amoment ago? 2 Q. Didyou have any intent beyond
3 A. Yes. | don't know because, 3 that?
4 again, | would haveto go back and refer to 4 A. Itwas--itwasbasicaly to
5 documents because, yeah, | don't know it as 5 confirm that there were changes that were
6 I'msitting here today. 6 being made on a biased basis that in my view
7 Q. Didyouknow it at thetime you 7 would impact the outcome of the study.
8 wereworking in Dr. Krah'slab? 8 Q. Why did you think they would
9 A. My interpretation of a 9 impact the outcome of the study?
10 seroconversion asa-- at thetimethat | 10 MR. KELLER: Asked and answered
11 worked in DaveKrah'slabisif it went from |11 a half adozen times, but answer again.
12 pre-negativeto pre-positive, it wasa 12 THE WITNESS:. Becauseit's not
13 seroconversion -- sorry, | think | said it 13 the original dataresults. And, again,
14 wrong. Pre-negative to post-positiveisa 14 going back to the validation of the
15 seroconversion. 15 method, should provide the information
16 Q. Didit matter what the titer 16 around what would be the actual data
17 wason the post-positive? 17 results that should be reported.
18 A. That, | can't recal. 18 BY MR. SANGIAMO:
19 Q. Sothat's how you would figure 19 Q. Doyou agreethere would be
20 out whether an individual sample had 20 changesto datathat would not necessarily
21 seroconverted. Right? 21 impact the outcome of the study?
22 A. Yes 22 MR. KELLER: Objection. Vague
23 Q. How would you calculate the 23 and ambiguous. Overbroad. Seeking
24 overal seroconversion rate, did you know that | 24 expert opinion from alay witness.
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1 THE WITNESS: Again, | would 1 youreferring to?
2 defer to an expert witness, but | would 2 A. The--what | spoke about
3 also add that the outcome of a study 3 earlier where we were doing testing of high
4 should include the original data, the 4 andlow passage cell lines.
5 dataintegrity should be maintained in 5 Q. You think that was improper?
6 the study. 6 A. 1 do because you're generating
7 BY MR. SANGIAMO: 7 additional data on those test articles that
8 Q. Soareyou ableto answer the 8 could aso influence your results.
9 question of whether there could be changesto | 9 Q. How would that happen?
10 datathat would not impact the outcome of the | 10 A. If somebody would make a
11 study? Areyou ableto answer that? 11 comparison to the results or try to draw
12 MR. KELLER: Asked and answered.| 12 conclusions from that.
13 Shejust answered the exact same 13 Q. I'msorry, could you spell that
14 question. 14 out? | don't understand.
15 THE WITNESS: | guess| can 15 A. If during the course of the
16 restate my answer in saying | wouldn't 16 testing of the mumps neutralization assay for
17 want to know if the changes impacted 17 the Protocol 007 you, say, Saw a Sseroconversion
18 the study. | would want to know what 18 and thenif you ran two other assays and a
19 thereal dataisand | think that asa 19 supplemental assay and then saw something
20 scientist we all should want to know 20 different, it may make you question your
21 what the real dataisthat would be 21 resultsin the assay that was being tested for
22 reported in the study. 22 Protocol 007.
23 BY MR. SANGIAMO: 23 Q. Doyou know if that happened?
24 Q. Why wouldn't you want to know 24 A. 1donot know if that happened.
Page 478 Page 480
1 whether the changesimpacted the outcome of | 1 Q. Doyou haveany reasonto
2 thestudy? 2 believethat it did happen?
3 A. Becausethisisnot aresearch 3 MR. KELLER: Lack of foundation.
4 or adevelopmental study. Thisisastudy 4 MR. SANGIAMO: That's kind of
5 thatis, again, being performed on clinical 5 my point.
6 Phaselll trial human patient serum. You 6 BY MR. SANGIAMO:
7 know, | believe there was additional data 7 Q. Doyou haveany reasonto
8 being generated and supplemental assaysthat | 8 believethat it did happen here?
9 were being tested using the clinical trial 9 A. | donot have any reason to
10 serumwhichisnot part of, asfar as| 10 believethat it did or didn't happen. Again,
11 understand, the clinical study. Theclinical 11 thetest articles, | would just expect it to,
12 study, the testing should only be conducted on | 12 you know, be used in what it was intended to
13 what was stated in the clinical study until 13 beusedin at the time for Protocol 007.
14 theclinical study was closed and completed. | 14 Q. Doyou even know that the
15 Q. Didyousay youhad an 15 supplemental testing involved serum from
16 understanding that there were additional 16 Protocol 007?
17 assays being conducted on the clinical tria 17 A. | recall Dave Krah asking usto
18 serum that were not part of the clinical 18 hold performing any additional supplemental
19 trid? 19 tedting astheir, | think, again, not wanting
20 A. There were the supplemental 20 to generate additional results on the test
21 testing, | believe, utilized the serum that 21 sera. Sol, again, may be speculation, but to
22 was generated or obtained as part of the 22 meat the time of -- the timing of his e-mail
23 trid. 23 after the FDA inspection would lead meto
24 Q. What supplemental testing are 24 believe that those were the test articles for
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1 Protocol 007. 1 Q. Canyoutell meyour best
2 Q. Youinferred that the supplemental 2 recollection of what it isthat Dr. Krah said?
3 testing on the other passages was being done 3 MR. KELLER: Do you want to
4 on serum from Protocol 007 because after the 4 take a minute to read the entire
5 FDA inspection, Dr. Krah told you to stop 5 paragraph?
6 doing the additional testing. Do | haveit 6 THE WITNESS: Yes.
7 right? 7 Y our question again was?
8 A. Andthat he also stated that 8 BY MR.SANGIAMO:
9 there may be some concerns with generating 9 Q. Canyou give meyour best
10 additional dataon the test sera. 10 recollection of what it is that Dr. Krah said
11 Q. Buthedidn't tell you that the 11 inwhat isreferred to in the second sentence
12 test serawere Protocol 007 test sera. Right? 12 of this paragraph?
13 A. Not at thetime and, again, | 13 A. | don'tthink I can elaborate
14 can't confirm whether it was or it wasn't. 14 more than what was said here. That's my best
15 But, again, based on the information that | 15 recollection.
16 reviewed, it leads meto question that. 16 Q. Do you have arecollection of
17 - - - 17 what he meant by the assay needing to be
18 (Exhibit Wlochowski-22, Assay 18 thrown out?
19 Counts, Bates RELATOR_00001014 to 1024, |19 A. S0, again, the assay wouldn't --
20 was marked for identification.) 20 the assay results would not be used. So the
21 - - - 21 assay would be discarded.
22 BY MR. SANGIAMO: 22 Q. Youdon't recal what words he
23 Q. Ms. Wiochowski, you've just 23 used to communicate what you interpreted to be
24 been handed what has been marked as 24 him saying that the assay would need to be
Page 482 Page 484
1 Exhibit 22. I'd ask you to take alook at 1 discarded?
2 that, please. 2 A. 1donot.
3 Have you looked it over? 3 Q. Isityour recollection that he
4 A. Okay. Yes, I'velooked it 4 was saying that the assay would need to be
5 over. 5 discarded because there was atear in the cell
6 Q. Areyou familiar with that 6 monolayer?
7 document? 7 A. Yes
8 A. I'mnot certain what it is. 8 Q. Would that be areason to
9 Q. Couldyou take alook at 9 discard an entire assay?
10 Exhibit 7 which is your Answers to Merck's 10 A. If it occurred in the mock
11 Revised First Set of Interrogatories? And 11 control, the mock control iswhat you base all
12 could you turn to page 18, please. 12  your results on.
13 The third full paragraph 13 Q. Soatearinasinglewelina
14 begins, "Once, Relator Krahling asked Relator 14 mock control would require discarding the
15 and Jon Gombolato review his plague count for 15 entire assay?
16 the mock control for one of his assays." 16 A. Itwouldn't require-- can you
17 Do you see that? 17 ask your question again to make sure | answer
18 A. Yes 18 right?
19 Q. Itsays, "Krahwasclaiming 19 Q. Would atear inasingle well
20 that the assay needed to be thrown out because 20 inthe mock control require discarding the
21 the cell monolayer was torn and there was a 21 entire assay?
22 low plague count.” 22 A. | don't think we had requirements
23 Do you see that? 23 around that.
24 A. Yes. 24 Q. What isthis about alow plague
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1 count? DidDr. Krah say it wasalow plague | 1 right now of how many wells Dr. Krah said were
2 count and that that was part of the reason 2 torninthisparticular assay. Right?
3 that the assay would have to be discarded? 3 A. No. Maybethewording is
4 A. Wédl, if the monolayer istorn, 4 misleading just to say it's atorn monolayer
5 ashesad, then the plague count would be -- 5 and that would indicate one well, but it could
6 you know, you wouldn't be ableto providea--| 6 mean acrossthe plate.
7 you wouldn't have the full count for a 7 Q. Areyou asserting that that is
8 confluent monolayer. 8 what he said?
9 Q. How many wells were there for 9 MR. KELLER: Mischaracterizes
10 the mock? 10 her testimony.
11 A. |don'trecall. 1 MR. SANGIAMO: I'mtrying to
12 Q. Couldyoutakealook at 12 get to the bottom of this, Jeff.
13 Exhibit 16, please, which is the plate layout 13 MR. KELLER: Shejust testified
14 sheet for assay 211. Right? 14 she doesn't recall.
15 A. Yes 15 MR. SANGIAMO: She put something
16 Q. Doesthat show how many plates 16 in verified Answers to Interrogatories
17 were used for the mock? 17 accusing Dr. Krah of wrongdoing. |
18 A. It showsthat there was one 18 need to find out what Dr. Krah said.
19 plate 19 MR. KELLER: To befair to the
20 Q. How many wellson aplate? 20 witness, she signed the Verification
21 A. Going to get thisright. 21 May 20, 2015. So two years ago.
22 Q. If it helpsyou any, you might 22 BY MR. SANGIAMO:
23 want to look at Exhibit 19. | don't know if 23 Q. Ms. Wlochowski, yesterday |
24 it will help you any. 24 asked you which of these Interrogatories
Page 486 Page 488
1 A. Soitwas 12 wells per plate. 1 Mr. Krahling had input into. Did Mr. Krahling
2 Q. 12weéllsper plate, isthat 2 haveany input into this paragraph?
3 what you said, Mss. Wlochowski? 3 A. No.
4 A. Yes 4 Q. Thiswasall your writing with
5 Q. Isityour recollection there 5 your counsel?
6 wasatear inoneof those 12 wells, theassay | 6 A. Yes.
7 would have to be discarded? 7 Q. Andsowhat isyour best
8 A. Sometimesif thereisatear, 8 recollection of what Dr. Krah said that you're
9 it could occur across aplate, across wells. 9 trying to capture there in the second sentence
10 Soif you're-- asyou're, you know, dumping |10 of this paragraph?
11 out the stain or the media, the aspirate, the 11 A. It'sjust exactly that. That
12 media, but it could be atrigger that occurs 12 thecell monolayer was torn. Whether he's
13 acrossthe plate. 13 indicating one or multiple wells, | don't
14 Q. Acrossadl 12 wells? 14 know.
15 A. Not across 12 wells, but it 15 Q. Youasodon't know what it is
16 could. Sometimesasyou'refixingtheedges |16 that he said in terms of what needed to be
17 of the monolayers across the plate, it could 17 done with the assay other than you've captured
18 start to come off. It dependson, you know -- | 18 here him saying it needed to be thrown out.
19 again, going back to the variability within 19 Isthat right?
20 cell-based assays, that could occur, or it 20 A. Yes
21 could be something during the course of 21 Q. Ms. Wlochowski, when | looked
22 running the assay that could cause that to 22 at that paragraph and when | looked at what
23 occur. 23 was marked as Exhibit 22 that raised a
24 Q. Butyou don't have arecollection 24 question in my mind which I'm going to ask you
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1 now to addressif you could, whether thereis 1 whether what is contained here in Exhibit 22
2 any relationship between the events described 2 relatesto what is described on page 18 of
3 inthe paragraphs and what is captured in 3 your Answersto Interrogatories?
4 Exhibit 22? 4 A. | cannot confirmthat. | do
5 MR. KELLER: For the record, 5 not know.
6 give her chance to look at Exhibit 22. 6 Q. Now, I think I -- when | first
7 MR. SANGIAMO: She spent afew 7 asked you if you recognized this document, you
8 minutes looking at it previously. 8 said something like I'm not certain if |
9 THE WITNESS: So you want to -- 9 recognizeit.
10 you're asking meif what isin the 10 A. Yes
11 paragraph relates to what isin 11 Q. Younow looked at it alittle
12 Exhibit 227 12 more. Do you recognizeit at al?
13 BY MR. SANGIAMO: 13 A. 1do not remember what this
14 Q. Yes, I am. If | could direct 14 document isfor. It lookslike there wasa
15 your attention to 1017 of Exhibit 22 using the 15 comparison done, but I do not remember the
16 Bates numbersin the bottom right-hand corner? 16 intent of the datathat is being presented
17 A. Okay. 17 here.
18 Q. You may note that this purports 18 Q. Haveyou seen the document
19 to describe counts done by you, Mr. Gombola, 19 before?
20 Dr. Krah and Mr. Krahling. Right? 20 MR. KELLER: Asked and answered.
21 A. Not necessarily. 21 BY MR. SANGIAMO:
22 Q. Page 1017 does not -- 22 Q. Don'ttdl meif yousawitin
23 A. Oh, sorry. So page 1017 refers 23 your meetings with counsel, but other than
24 to -- can you repeat your question? 24  that, have you seen it before?
Page 490 Page 492
1 Q. | wastryingto direct your 1 A. Yes, becausel signedit.
2 attention to the fact that page 1017 purports 2 Q. Areyousureyousigned it?
3 to show counts being done by you, Mr. Gombola, 3 Your signature appears there.
4 Dr. Krahand Mr. Krahling. Do you agree with 4 A. Yes, my signature.
5 that? 5 Q. Doyourecdl signing it?
6 A. Yes 6 MR. KELLER: Areyou -- you can
7 Q. Andthe paragraph in your 7 answer.
8 Answersto Interrogatories on page 18, as || 8 THE WITNESS: | don't remember
9 readit, is describing an instance in which a 9 if | signed it, but | believe that to
10 certain mock was looked at by you, Mr. Gombola, | 10 be my signature.
11 Dr. Krahand Mr. Krahling. Right? 11 BY MR. SANGIAMO:
12 A. Correct. 12 Q. Wadll, do you have any way of
13 Q. Andif we go back to page 1017 13 assessing whether it's a photocopy of your
14 it appearsthat in one of the 12 wellsin the 14 signature as opposed to your origina
15 dataasreported by Dr. Krah the word "torn" 15 signature?
16 appears. Right? 16 A. |1 mean,itisaphotocopy here
17 A. Correct. 17 today.
18 Q. Andin the corresponding wells 18 Q. Right.
19 in the counts as done by you, Mr. Gombola and 19 A. That -- | don't have any reason
20 Mr. Krahling, thereis no indication of a 20 tobelievethat it's not my signature.
21 tear. Right? 21 Q. Do youremember doing acount
22 A. Correct. 22 of mocks under these special circumstances
23 Q. Soitwason that basisthat | 23 that appear to be reflected here in this
24 wondered, and I'm asking you to addressiit, of 24 document?
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1 A. | cannot remember doing this, 1 those counts?
2 no. 2 A. Again, | don't recall Steve
3 Q. Thisisan unusual kind of 3 asking meto count -- I'm trying to respond
4 thing, isn'tit? 4 correctly. So | don't recall him asking meto
5 A. Yes 5 recount both of these assays| guessis
6 MR. KELLER: Objection. 6 what -- or both of these mock platesiswhat
7 BY MR. SANGIAMO: 7 you're saying.
8 Q. Thereisno particular reason 8 Q. That'swhat I'masking. You
9 why the running of the assay, you and Jill 9 don't recall that?
10 DeHaven and Dr. Krah and Mr. Krahling would 10 A. Him asking me to count
11 haveall counted the mocks for two assays. 11 specificaly both plates.
12 Right? 12 Q. Doyourecall him ever asking
13 MR. KELLER: And Jon Gombola, 13 you to count plates?
14 you forgot him. 14 A. Based onwhat | have here, yes.
15 BY MR. SANGIAMO: 15 Q. Other than that?
16 Q. Jon Gombola, one of the other 16 A. Again, when we say count, it's
17 ones. Right? 17 taking alook at what somebody else reported.
18 A. Your question again was? 18 I'm not saying that my -- if he asked meto
19 Q. Itwould be unusual for you and 19 look at something, that it was something that
20 Jill DeHaven and Dr. Krah and Mr. Krahling all 20 changed any results that were being reported.
21 to count the mocks for one assay and for you 21 But aswe agreed to here, we talked about how
22 and Mr. Gombolaand Dr. Krah and Mr. Krahling |22 we wanted to keep arecord of what we were
23 dl to count the mocks for another assay. 23 counting at that time.
24 Right? 24 Q. Butyoudon't recall him saying
Page 494 Page 496
1 A. Wél, again, it depends on what 1 toyou, hey, Joan, could you, please, count
2 you consider unusua. Thiswouldn't be 2 themock for this assay and tell me what
3 something that we would conduct aspart of -- | 3 numbers you get?
4 | guessin Protocol 007 we wouldn't -- there 4 MR. KELLER: Objection. Asked
5 wouldn't be four different people counting the | 5 and answered like six times. Answer it
6 sameplatesfor every assay that wetested for | 6 again.
7 Protocol 007. 7 THE WITNESS: Yeah, | mean, as
8 Q. Doyourecal Mr. Krahling 8 | stated earlier, he did ask me to look
9 asking you to do acount of all 12 plates -- 9 at amock. Now, whether or not that
10 I'msorry, al 12 wellsfor the mock in two 10 mock is this mock, whether or not he
11 different assaysfor some reason unrelatedto | 11 asked meto look at that and there was
12 actual datafor theclinical trial? 12 additional plates or counts that were
13 A. Mr. Krahling? 13 being conducted anyways, | can't
14 Q. Yes 14 recall.
15 A. Asking meto -- can you repeat 15 MR. SANGIAMO: Why don't we
16 the question? 16 take a break.
17 Q. Doyou agree that Exhibit 22 17 MR. KELLER: We've been going
18 appearstoindicate that you counted all 12 18 an hour or so.
19 wellsfor the mock for assay 170 and that you | 19 VIDEOGRAPHER: Thetimeis
20 aso counted al 12 wells for the mock for 20 4:09. Going off the video record.
21 assay 179? Do you agree with that? 21 - - -
22 A. Basedonthis, yes. 22 (A recess was taken.)
23 Q. Do you have any recollection of 23 - - -
24 Mr. Krahling or anybody €else asking you to do| 24 VIDEOGRAPHER: Thetimeisnow
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1 4:31. Back on the video record. 1 youlooking at the Answersto Interrogatories.
2 BY MR. SANGIAMO: 2 I'masking for your recollection right now.

3 Q. Ms. Wlochowski, if you could 3 A. My recollectionright now is|

4 takeout Exhibit 7, please. And turnto 4 don'trecdl. | believel did.

5 page18. And turn--if you look at the top 5 Q. I'mhavingahardtime. You

6 of page 18, these are your revised Answersto | 6 don't recall but you believe you did?

7 Interrogatories and the particular paragraph 7 A. | believethat | saw him but --

8 at thetop of page 18 beginswith, "One 8 again, to the best of my recollection, | saw
9 morning in early August 2001, Relator 9 him do that.

10 witnessed Krah taking plates from completed | 10 Q. What time of day wasthis?

11 assaysand disposing them in biohazard bags. |11 A. Thiswasearly in the morning.

12 Shetold Relator Krahling immediately. 12 Q. Around what time, do you recall?

13 Relator and Relator Krahling discussed how | 13 A. Maybe around 8:00.

14 unusual this was because they had never seen | 14 Q. Wasit the casethat you walked

15 Krah dispose of any plates before and Krah was15 into the room and that is how you saw it or

16 intentionally destroying the evidence of raw | 16 did you seeit through awindow or how did you

17 datathat was being manipulated in an ongoing | 17 seeit?

18 clinicdl tria." 18 A. | waked into the room.

19 Where in the lab was Dr. Krah 19 Q. Wasthereanyoneeseinthe

20 when you witnessed him taking the platesfrom 20 room at the time?

21 completed assays and disposing themin 21 A. | don'tthink so.

22 biohazard bags? 22 Q. Youwerearriving -- I'm sorry,

23 A. Sol'll haveto explain. | 23 strike that.

24 don't know what you know about the |ab setup.| 24 Did you and Dr. Krah say

Page 498 Page 500
1 Q. Washeinhisoffice? 1 anything to each other at that point?
2 A. No, hewasnot in hisoffice. 2 A. Notthat | recal, no.
3 Q. What room? Isthere aname for 3 Q. Didyou remain in the room?
4 theroom hewasin? 4 A. No, because | went to discuss
5 A. They have room numbers. And | 5 with Steve.
6 can't remember which room number was which. 6 Q. How long were you in the room
7 So his office was attached to one of the labs 7 before you then left to go discussit with
8 and then across the hall there was a second 8 Steve? A moment?
9 lab. So hewas acrossthe hal in that second 9 A. Notamoment. Again, | believe

10 lab, not the one that is next to his office. 10 | wasjust coming in for the day and dropped

11 Sointhat second lab iswhere | would say the 11 my stuff off at thedesk. Sol can't say if |

12 magjority, if not all, | can't recall if there 12 stayed there five minutes or ten minutes. |

13 isany counting donein the other lab, but the 13 can't remember.

14 labwhere my desk is, therewas abigisland 14 Q. DidDr. Krah seeyou?

15 typically that we sat there to count the 15 A. | beieveso, yes.

16 plates and there were stacks of platesin the 16 Q. Doyou have any way of

17 middle of theisland against the wall. So he 17 estimating how many plates he was putting in

18 wastaking those plates and putting them into 18 the biohazard bag?

19 abiohazard bag to be destroyed. 19 MR. KELLER: Objection. Lack

20 Q. Weéll, you saw him putting them 20 of foundation.

21 inabiohazard bag. Right? 21 THE WITNESS: | do not.

22 A. | can't remember if | saw him 22 BY MR. SANGIAMO:

23 putting it in the autoclave as well. 23 Q. Doyouknow if putting plates

24 Q. Youjust don't remember? | see 24 in abiohazard bag is the appropriate way to
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1 takethefirst step in discarding? 1 Q. What did hesay? I'm sorry,
2 A. Again, I've never seen what -- 2 continue.
3 how -- | have never seen him do this before 3 A. lwasgoingtosay hewasin
4 s0.. 4 shock hewas doingit. Your question?
5 Q. Soyou don't know whether that 5 Q. Doyourecdl what words
6 isthe appropriate first step to take to -- 6 Mr. Krahling spoke?
7 MR. KELLER: Objection. 7 A. | donotrecal.
8 Mischaracterizes the testimony. 8 Q. Do you know what the process
9 BY MR. SANGIAMO: 9 wasgeneraly for discarding the plates that
10 Q. --todiscard plates? 10 wereused in Protocol 0077
11 MR. KELLER: Lack of foundation. 11 A. 1 do not know what the process
12 THE WITNESS: Again, | don't 12 wasthat | can recall.
13 recall any method that we had for 13 Q. Haveyou had any involvement in
14 disposing them. 14 thediscarding of plates -- strike that.
15 BY MR. SANGIAMO: 15 Have you had any involvement in
16 Q. Do you know whether plates had 16 thediscarding of test samplesthat contain a
17 been disposed of earlier in the clinical 17 livevirusinyour career?
18 trial? 18 A. Yes
19 A. | do not other than because 19 Q. Isthat at Pfizer?
20 thiswas, likel said, thefirst timel had 20 A. AtYade | can't remember if
21 seen himdo this. There were many, many 21 at Pfizer. And there may have been other
22 platesthat were stacked up in the laboratory. 22 instances, but | can say at Yaethat | didit.
23 They were covered with dust. Seemed like they 23 Q. Do you have any recollection of
24 had been there for quite some time. 24  what the procedure was for discarding the test
Page 502 Page 504
1 Q. What do you mean covered with 1 samples containing live virus at New Haven?
2 dust? 2 A. Wediscarded into a biohazard
3 A. They had been there for some 3 waste container.
4 time. Therewasanumber of plates. 4 Q. Would you do that right after
5 Q. Doyou mean literally covered 5 thetesting?
6 with dust or are you using that figuratively? 6 A. When the test was complete, yes.
7 A. That'swhat | recall, yes. 7 Q. Asl understand your testimony
8 Q. What was-- -- strike that. 8 ditting here right now, you don't have a
9 Did Dr. Krah ater his conduct 9 recollection of being involved in the
10 when he saw you? 10 discarding of test samples containing alive
11 A. | don't think so. 11 virusinyour time at Pfizer or Amgen. Right?
12 Q. Yousaidyou left the room to 12 A. I'mnot excluding it, but |
13 thengotalk to Mr. Krahling? 13 don't recall.
14 A. |did. 14 Q. Couldyou flip back to page 14,
15 Q. Wasit unusua for Mr. Krahling 15 please, of Exhibit 7? | want to direct your
16 tobein at that hour? 16 attention to the first paragraph on that page.
17 A. Hewastypicdly in before Dave 17 Inparticular, | was going to ask you about
18 was. 18 the sentence in thefifth line that reads,
19 Q. Okay. And 8:00, that was your 19 "Kennedy agreed that there was fraud in the
20 arrival time at that time. Right? 20 lab regarding Protocol 007, but he did not
21 A. Yes 21 want to be apart of taking a stand against it
22 Q. What was Mr. Krahling's 22 ashedid not want to lose hisjob."
23 reaction when you told him what you saw? 23 My question is going to be your
24 A. 1think he was somewhat shocked. |24 best recollection of exactly what it isthat
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1 Mr.Kennedy said. If you feel you need to 1 conversation with him would have been
2 read the whole paragraph to answer that 2 around the fact that Dave Krah was
3 question, that's fine. 3 asking usto look to identify more
4 A. | would like to read that 4 plagues where -- on pre-positives
5 paragraph. 5 because, again, it's not expected and
6 Q. Sure 6 that there were people he agreed in the
7 A. Your question again was? 7 lab that would do that based on Dave
8 Q. Just for your best recollection 8 Krah's direction.
9 of thewords Mr. Kennedy spokethatyouare | 9 BY MR. SANGIAMO:
10 referring to in the sentence that begins on 10 Q. Couldyou turn to page 15,
11 line5that reads, "Kennedy agreed that there | 11 please. Andif you look at the paragraph at
12 wasfraud in the lab regarding Protocol 007, |12 the bottom of page 15, it reads, In July of
13 but he did not want to be a part of taking a 13 2001, at alaboratory meeting involving all
14 stand against it as he did not want to lose 14 members of the laboratory, Relator accused
15 hisjob." 15 Krah of "cheating." She stated that when the
16 A. Again, not being able to quote 16 testersare not blinded as to whether samples
17 exactly what he said at that time, that was 17 arepre- or post-vaccination, it iswrong to
18 the conversations that we had exchanged was | 18 recount and adjust a pre-vaccination sample
19 that iswhat he had indicated, he did not want | 19 only becauseit isfound to be seropositive,
20 tolosehisjob. 20 Krah responded to this accusation with an
21 Q. Did he usetheword "fraud"? 21 awkward silence.
22 A. | don'trecal if he used the 22 Have you already described for
23 word "fraud" himself. But, again, in our 23 ustoday that event?
24 discussionswith it, or surrounding the events | 24 A. Yes
Page 506 Page 508
1 that occurred in the laboratory, hewasin 1 Q. If youturnto page 17, the
2 agreement that data was being manipulated and 2 last paragraph reads, On one occasion,
3 fasified. 3 Relator, DeHaven, Kennedy, Gombola and Suzanne
4 Q. Didheusetheword "manipulated"? | 4 Maahslearned of Emini's planned audit from
5 A. | can't recall what word he 5 Relator Krahling. Relator, Gombola and Maahs
6 used. | mean, it wasmorelikely that | 6 agreed to stick together and explain to the
7 stated something and he agreed with it. 7 Merck auditors exactly what was going onin
8 Q. Doyourecal what it isthat 8 thelab. DeHaven and Kennedy opted to take a
9 you stated when he agreed? 9 neutra stance with Emini's auditors. They
10 A. 1donot recall exactly what | 10 agreed not to lie but said that they would not
11 stated to him other than what we described, 11 volunteer information unless asked.
12 you know, the events that we described here | 12 What specifically do you recall
13 today about changing the data and that it was |13 Mr. Gombolaand Ms. Maahs saying as you
14 wrong, and he agreed with that. 14 characterized here asthem agreeing to stick
15 Q. Andisit possible you said to 15 together?
16 him, Dr. Krahis having us focus counting 16 A. Again, | think to the extent of
17 checkson pre-positives. And he said, yes, | 17 what | have documented here is my recollection
18 agree? 18 of, you know, there was multiple discussions
19 MR. KELLER: Objection. Lack 19 with all these different peoplein the
20 of foundation. Argumentative. 20 laboratory about what was going on, this group
21 THE WITNESS: Again, | --itis 21 herein particular. So to remember the exact
22 -- I'm trying to think of another way 22 words of what was discussed at that time,
23 to say it. He agreed that -- in the 23 becauseit was carried out over multiple
24 course of our discussions, my 24 conversations, but asit relates to the audit,
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1 again, Suzanne and Jon were willing to -- they | 1 Q. Isthat the entirety of what
2 were more willing to speak up in the audit if 2 you haveto say to mein terms of whether he
3 there was opportunity as, again, Jill and 3 wasever told that he might lose hisjob if he
4 Frank were, athough they agreed, they weren't| 4 answered the questions at the audit?
5 going to -- they weren't going to volunteer 5 A. Yes
6 that information. 6 MR. KELLER: Objection. Lack
7 Q. Weren't going to volunteer what 7 of foundation. Interpose an objection.
8 information? 8 Lack of foundation.
9 A. Of, again, the data changes 9 BY MR. SANGIAMO:
10 that were occurring on the pre-positives. 10 Q. If you turn to page 20 of your
11 Q. Didthey express any reluctance 11 Answersto Interrogatories. Thelast full
12 toreved it? 12 paragraph on that page reads, "Relator had
13 A. They werereluctant based on 13 multiple communications with Alan Shaw about
14 the-- what we went over previously withmy | 14 topicsrelating to alegationsin the
15 responseto Frank. Again, hisreluctancewas |15 complaint regarding the mumps vaccine. These
16 around potentially losing hisjob for 16 communications took place in person at Merck's
17 providing information. 17 facility where they worked in West Point,
18 Q. Isthat what he said? 18 Pennsylvania between January and September 2001.
19 MR. KELLER: Objection. Asked 19 Relator specifically recallsthe day that Shaw
20 and answered. 20 cameinto thelab to tell the team that the
21 BY MR. SANGIAMO: 21 FDA wason site. Shaw was white as a ghost
22 Q. Didhesay if | tell the truth 22 and left quickly after making the
23 | might lose my job? 23 announcement. Relator does not know Shaw's
24 A. Again, inthe genera sense, yes. 24 current or last known address or place of
Page 510 Page 512
1 Q. Did heindicate that anyone 1 employment."
2 ever told him that that was so? 2 When you say Shaw was white as
3 MR. KELLER: I'm sorry, can you 3 aghost, that is colorful phrasing. Do you
4 read that question back? 4 mean his natural complexion was different than
5 BY MR.SANGIAMO: 5 what it usualy is?
6 Q. Didheindicate that anyone 6 A. Yes
7 evertold him that was so? 7 Q. Washiscomplexion pretty pale
8 A.  When he had -- he had indicated 8 tobeginwith?
9 he, himself, also felt isolated from the lab 9 A. ltis, but his-- my impression
10 group and, you know, he didn't want to put 10 of Alan Shaw is he always carried himself with
11 anything, any additional stresses on his 11 confidence. This particular day, was -- it
12 acceptance and maintaining hisjob. 12 wasasthey camein, he had alook of --
13 Q. Didanyoneever indicate to 13 tryingtofind the right word. | guessalook
14 Mr. Kennedy that he might lose hisjobif he |14 of concern.
15 answered the questions of the auditor at the 15 Q. Asonewould expect a
16 audit? 16 pharmaceutical executiveto have if there was
17 MR. KELLER: Objection. Asked |17 anFDA inspection. Right?
18 and answered. 18 MR. KELLER: Objection.
19 THE WITNESS: Again, if youare |19 Objection. Lack of foundation. Calls
20 being targeted and don't feel 20 for speculation.
21 comfortable with something that could 21 THE WITNESS: Pharmaceutical
22 put your job at risk, then that was his 22 companies are, you know, inspected
23 feeling. 23 regularly. So those who are seasoned
24 BY MR. SANGIAMO: 24 are used to handling this -- handling
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1 an inspection and typicaly thereisa 1 at the company?
2 different -- | guessit does put you on 2 Q. Yes. For example. How many
3 guard, but, again, it's not -- he 3 FDA inspections were there at Amgen while you
4 seemed to be a bit more concerned than 4 wereworking at Amgen, added to the number of
5 | would expect him. 5 FDA inspections at Pfizer while you were
6 BY MR. SANGIAMO: 6 working at Pfizer, added to the number of FDA
7 Q. Inspections are usualy of 7 inspections at Alexion while you were working
8 manufacturing facilities by the FDA? 8 atAlexion.
9 MR. KELLER: Objection. 9 A. Again, those are global companies
10 Foundation. Overbroad. 10 so--
11 BY MR. SANGIAMO: 11 MR. KELLER: Objection.
12 Q. Doyouknow? 12 Overbroad. Lack of foundation.
13 A. 1 doknow that it goes beyond 13 BY MR. SANGIAMO:
14 manufacturing facilities. 14 Q. Theonesyou know of.
15 Q. How many inspections do you 15 MR. KELLER: Still overbroad.
16 have knowledge of in your career, FDA 16 Lack of foundation.
17 inspections? 17 THE WITNESS: If you are asking
18 A. What do you mean do | have 18 me -- maybe | can make it easier.
19 knowledge of? 19 BY MR. SANGIAMO:
20 Q. Thatyoureawareof. Thatis 20 Q. Sure.
21 afair question. How many inspections are you| 21 A. Sotypicaly there would be an
22 aware of that have occurred at pharmaceutical | 22 annual or biannual inspection. There could be
23 companies while you were working there? 23 afollow-up inspection. But FDA inspections
24 A. That's pretty broad, too. 24 are usually unannounced, but pharmaceutical
Page 514 Page 516
1 MR. KELLER: That'svery broad. 1 companiestypically have an indication of when
2 BY MR. SANGIAMO: 2 they expect the next visit to occur. The
3 Q. FDA inspections. 3 exception would beif there was a for-cause
4 MR. KELLER: Same. 4 audit that the FDA could comein on that
5 THE WITNESS: | worked for 5 non-routine schedule to inspect.
6 multiple pharmaceutical companies. | 6 Q. Yousayinyour -- the
7 guess I'm not -- 7 paragraphin your Answers to I nterrogatories
8 BY MR. SANGIAMO: 8 that we were just reading that you had
9 Q. Soyouthink it could be more 9 multiple communications with Alan Shaw about
10 than 50 or something? 10 topicsrelating to alegationsin the
11 A. Areyou saying at the company 11 Complaint regarding the mumps vaccine. Were
12 that | worked at? 12 any of those one-on-one conversations between
13 Q. Uh-huh. 13 you and Dr. Shaw?
14 A. And over the course of what -- 14 A. | don't recall one-on-one
15 1 guessI'm-- again, it's still very broad to 15 conversations.
16 me 16 Q. What do you recall about the
17 Q. When you were working there. 17 context of the communicationsthat are
18 A.  When | was working where? 18 referred to in that response?
19 Q. Atthevarious pharmaceutical 19 A. | believe when we had -- when
20 companiesthat you've worked at? 20 we had the meeting with Emilio, | believe that
21 A. Andyou're asking the question, 21 Alanwas present. So thiswas the meeting
22 again, about the -- 22 where Emilio was enforcing the importance of
23 Q. Number of FDA inspections. 23 thelab being able to complete the testing in,
24 A. Thenumber of FDA inspections 24 | guess, an expedited manner and that bonuses
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1 would be given for completion of the testing. 1 attendees, but was it multiple labs?
2 I'mtrying to remember other examples. That's 2 A. Fromwhat | recal, yes, |
3 all I can remember at thistime specifically. 3 think it was the whole department of virus and
4 Q. That'sall you can remember by 4 cdl biology.
5 way of occasionsin which Dr. Shaw 5 Q. Didanyone else speak at this
6 communicated with you about the topics related 6 meeting?
7 toalegationsin the Complaint regarding 7 A. | can'trecal.
8 mumps vaccine? 8 Q. What did Dr. Emini say about
9 A. Yes. 9 next steps?
10 Q. What do you recall Dr. Shaw 10 A. Sothat, again, | would have
11 saying at that meeting? 11 to-- to the best of my recollection, |
12 A. | dontrecal if hesad 12 believe there was a statement around the
13 anything at that meeting. 13 application of -- | can't remember. | know |
14 Q. Doyou recal having any 14 haveasummary of it.
15 communications with Dr. Emini other than at 15 Q. You said you know you have a
16 the meeting you just described? 16 summary of it?
17 A. Not directly, no. 17 A. Yes
18 Q. Okay. Makesure | understand 18 Q. You meaninwriting?
19 what that means. Does that mean that -- 19 A. Yes
20 actually, what does that mean? 20 Q. But other than that summary,
21 A. | mean, it doesn't make sense, 21 you don't have arecollection?
22 | guess. Sol did not have aconversation 22 A. Because, again, it's getting
23 with Emilio. | know that through Bob Suter 23 blurred with other information. | know we had
24  that one of the exhibits that we looked at the 24  some after the FDA inspection, we had
Page 518 Page 520
1 other day was after my talking to Bob, Bob 1 training, other presentation information that
2 takedto Emilio. So that'sthe extent. 2 wasgiventouson-- I'mjust blurring on
3 Q. Isee Youjust now said -- 3 what hisdirection was.
4 you just now spoke in terms of conversations | 4 Q. You gave some testimony earlier
5 with Emilio. Make surel have afull 5 about the meeting attended by Dr. Emini and
6 understanding. Do you recall any other kind 6 Dr. Shaw during which Dr. Emini mentioned the
7 of direct communication with Emilio other than 7 importance of completing the study and the
8 the one meeting that you described? 8 bonusesto the lab if this study was completed
9 A. Sol believetherewasa 9 onacertain schedule?
10 departmental meeting that Emilio had provided 10 A. Yes
11 following the FDA inspection. That'swhat | |11 Q. Doyourecall anything else
12 recal. 12 about what Dr. Emini said at that meeting?
13 Q. Anything else? 13 A. 1donot.
14 A. | can'trecal at thistime. 14 Q. Wasit ashort meeting?
15 Q. What do you recall about the 15 A. Tothebest| canrecall, yes.
16 departmental meeting following the FDA 16 Q. If you had to estimate the
17 inspection in terms of what Dr. Emini said? 17 length of the meeting, what would be your best
18 A. | wantto say he gave asummary 18 estimate?
19 of the 483 responses. 19 A. Not more than ahalf an hour.
20 Q. Okay. Did hetalk about next 20 Q. Could you turn to page 8 of the
21 steps? 21 Answersto Interrogatories, please. If you
22 A. Yes, | believe so. 22 ook at the paragraph under the heading 1, do
23 Q. Who was at this departmental 23 you seethat?
24 meeting, I'm not asking for aroster of all 24 A. Yes.
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1 Q. Itsays, "Relator Krahling told 1 THEWITNESS. Sol can't -- |
2 Relator what he learned from Krah of numerous 2 don't think | can answer that question
3 communications -- both written and verbal -- 3 based on what I've discussed with legal
4 that Merck had with the FDA in the 1999-2001 4 counsel.
5 time frame in connection with its Protocol 007 5 BY MR. SANGIAMO:
6 testing. Relator knows these communications 6 Q. Right. Soyou don't know
7 occurred and that these communications did not 7 anything about that other than what you have
8 disclose what Merck knew about the 8 discussed with counsdl. Isthat afair
9 dignificantly diminished efficacy of the 9 statement?
10 vaccine and the stepsiit was taking to conceal 10 A. Totheextent of my knowledge,
11 thisfromthe FDA." That'sthe end of the 11 beyond what counsel hastold me, | know that,
12 quote. 12 again, the -- what is currently reported in
13 How isit that you know that 13 thelabel isreferencing to the origina data
14 these communications occurred and that these 14 that was generated from the approval of the
15 communications did not disclose what Merck 15 vaccine when it wasfirst approved. Thisis
16 knew about the significant diminished efficacy 16 because-- | guess!'ll let you hook that into
17 of the vaccine and the stepsiit was taking to 17 my response.
18 conceal thisfrom the FDA? 18 MR. KELLER: Let meinterpose
19 MR. KELLER: | object. The 19 an objection. Asked and answered this
20 responses to | nterrogatories were 20 question previously.
21 written by both lawyers and the 21 - - -
22 verifier. And | object asalegal 22 (Exhibit Wlochowski-23,
23 conclusion to that question. To the 23 Handwritten document, Bates RELATOR |
24 extent you can answer it. And to the 24 00000707, was marked for identification.)
Page 522 Page 524
1 extent the question is compound, | 1 - - -
2 object to that as well. 2 BY MR. SANGIAMO:
3 THE WITNESS: Can | read the 3 Q. Ms. Wlochowski, you've been
4 context of the question? 4 handed what has been marked as Exhibit 23. A
5 BY MR. SANGIAMO: 5 few minutes ago you were giving testimony
6 Q. Sure. | may beableto 6 about ameeting that you attended in which Dr.
7 simplify thisfor you. Do you have any 7 Emini discussed the inspection and the next
8 personal knowledge of what is stated therein | 8 steps after the inspection. | believe while
9 the second sentence of the response under 9 you were giving that testimony you indicated
10 paragraph number 1 on page 8 of your Answers 10 you had documentation of what was discussed at
11 to Interrogatories, the sentence that begins, 11 that meeting. Isthat right?
12 "Relator knows these communications 12 A. Yes
13 occurred...," and so forth? 13 Q. Exhibit 23, isthat the
14 MR. KELLER: Objection. 14 documentation you were referring to?
15 Overbroad. 15 A. Yes
16 THE WITNESS: Can you define 16 Q. Down at the very bottom of the
17 what you mean by personal knowledge 17 pageit says, "human subject must be GMP."
18 here? 18 Right?
19 BY MR. SANGIAMO: 19 A. Yes
20 Q. What isthe basis of your 20 Q. Andthereisalittle mark of
21 knowledge supporting that statement? Let's |21 some sort just to the left of human. Do you
22 try that question. 22  know what that is?
23 MR. KELLER: Again, seeksa 23 A. That'sastar, an asterisk.
24 legal conclusion. 24 Q. Doyourecall exactly what it
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Page 525
isthat Dr. Emini said in that regard, and in

particular I'd ask you to focus on whether he
was saying that that is what the FDA said or
was he saying that that was his belief, or
what was he saying to the best of your belief?
MR. KELLER: Objection. Lack
of foundation. Y ou can answer.
THE WITNESS: | don't recall
what was his reasoning for stating
that.
BY MR. SANGIAMO:
Q. Okay. If we could go back to
Exhibit 7, please. Turnto page 13. The
first paragraph reads. "Relator had multiple
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Page 527
some cases that the analyst that counted the

plate originally, the data was changed by a
different analyst. Soit didn't go back to
the original person who counted the assay.
Q. Did Jon Gombola use the word
"fraud"?
A. Idon'trecal if heusedthe

word "fraud."
Q. Did he use the word "manipulation”?
A. | don'trecdl.
Q. Isheacollege student?
A. Yes
Q. Turning to page 14, please.

The paragraph at the bottom begins, "On one

15 communications with Jon Gombola about topics 15 occasion, Krah instructed Relator to perform
16 relating to allegationsin the complaint 16 recountsof her data. Relator was not
17 regarding the mumps vaccine. These 17 provided information regarding the methodol ogy
18 communications took place in person at Merck's 18 of the study, so initially she thought Krah
19 facility where they worked in West Point, 19 Wasteaching her how to find plagues correctly
20 Pennsylvania between January and September 2001. 20 and this was part of the learning curve of
21 Gombolawas an intern working in Krah's lab 21 plagueidentification. Later, however, after
22 for the summer who was planning to go on to 22 Relator Krahling gave her a copy of the
23 med school. Gombolaexpressed hedid not want | 23  Enhanced Assay methodology and after more
24 to be apart of the fraud occurring in the 24 experience counting plagues, she began to
Page 526 Page 528
1 lab. He agreed with Relators and Maahs to 1 question Krah's motives. Krah requested
2 make copies of counting sheets and countersign 2 recounts of plagques after the data was
3 the sheetswhich Relator Krahling would 3 assessed.” And then the paragraph continues.
4 collect for safe-keeping. Relator, feeling 4 My question to you is just
5 bad that an intern had to be exposed to fraud, | 5 whether you can describe the document that
6 told Gombolathat thisisan example of what | 6 you'rereferring to in this answer where you
7 nottodoanditisnot likethis everywhere 7 say "Enhanced Assay methodology"?
8 yougo. Relator does not know Gombola's 8 MR. KELLER: If you need to
9 current or last known address or place of 9 read the entire paragraph, fedl freeto
10 employment." 10 do that.
11 | want to focus on the sentence 11 THE WITNESS: | believein this
12 that reads, "Gombola expressed he did not want 12 statement here the Enhanced Assay
13 tobeapart of the fraud occurring in the 13 methodology refersto the -- | want to
14 lab." | want to ask you your best 14 make sure | get it right.
15 recollection of the words Gombola spoke? 15 | believe in thisinstance here
16 A. Again, there were a number of 16 the reference is back to the document
17 usthat at a certain point in time when we 17 for the development of the assay.
18 were being asked to go back and find more 18 BY MR. SANGIAMO:
19 plagues on pre-positives, felt that we had 19 Q. [Isee Okay. Attheend of
20 enough experience to count the platessowe |20 that paragraph it states, "On another occasion,
21 did not make any changes. And, you know, an| 21 Krah directed Relator and othersin the lab on
22 example of the -- | guess just going back to 22 aprocedure to avoid invalidating assays
23 Exhibit 21, just looking at who the plates 23 that should have been discarded because the
24 wereoriginally counted by, you can seein 24 |ab was under pressure to complete all testing
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1 by anAugust deadline.” 1 Q. You'vejust been handed what
2 What was the procedure to avoid 2 has been marked as Exhibit 24. These are your
3 invalidating assays? 3 Answersto Merck's First Set of Interrogatories.
4 MR. KELLER: If you need to 4 Right? If you're wondering what the relationship
5 read the entire paragraph... 5 isbetween --
6 MR. SANGIAMO: | thought she 6 A. They look very similar.
7 did. 7 Q. They are. It looks like Jeff
8 MR. KELLER: | wasn't sureif 8 isabout to tell you.
9 shedid. 9 MR. KELLER: Oneisrevised,
10 BY MR. SANGIAMO: 10 oneisorigina.
11 Q. Haveyou read that paragraph 11 THE WITNESS: So the one we
12 dready? 12 were looking at first is the revised
13 A. 1didn'tfinish. Repeat your 13 but thisisthe first set.
14 question. 14 BY MR. SANGIAMO:
15 Q. My questionis, what isthe 15 Q. Yes
16 procedure to which you arereferring in the 16 A. Sothey'reinreverse.
17 last sentence of that paragraph? 17 Q. Yes Exactly.
18 A. Inthesensethat | don't think 18 | was going to ask you to turn
19 procedure means an SOP document as, again, |19 to page 14, please, where thereis a paragraph
20 similarto-- let'sseeif | can get an 20 at thetop that reads asfollows: "Relator
21 example. So similar to above where Krah had | 21  wasworking in David Krah's lab on August 6,
22 explained that a sample would be recounted, if | 22 2001, along with Stephen Krahling and others.
23 it was determined to show a pre-positive 23 Alan Shaw camein to Krah'slab and told
24 result. He also had advised on a procedure 24 Relator that the FDA was 'here.' Relator
Page 530 Page 532
1 that -- | shouldn't say a procedure, but he 1 continued to go about her work while the FDA
2 had a'so advised the same for assays which may 2 representative wasin Krah'slab. Relator saw
3 haveresulted ininvalid assays, to recheck 3 Mr. Krahling sitting at his desk near where
4 thoseaswell. 4 Krah, Shaw and the FDA representative
5 Q. Torecheck those to make sure 5 weretaking in Mr. Krah's office.
6 that the plagues are counted accurately 6 Thereafter, Mr. Krahling informed Relator that
7 becauseif they weren't, and they were changed 7 heoverheard the conversations between the FDA
8 toan accurate count, an invalid assay would 8 representative, Krah and Shaw on August 6,
9 becomevalid? 9 2001 described in Relators complaint.”
10 A. To recheck the count to see if 10 Did you, yourself, hear what
11 you could either find more plagues because 11 was said between Dr. Krah and the FDA on
12 that would make it positive or less plagues 12 August 6, 2001?
13 because -- I'm sorry, find more plagues 13 MR. KELLER: Objection. Asked
14 because that would make the assay valid or to 14 and answered. Answer again.
15 find less plaques because that would make the 15 THE WITNESS: | did not hear
16 assay valid depending on what it was that you 16 what was being discussed between the
17 wererechecking. 17 FDA and Krah and Shaw.
18 - - - 18 BY MR. SANGIAMO:
19 (Exhibit Wlochowski-24, 19 Q. Isyour understanding of what
20 Responses and Objectionsto Merck's 20 wasdiscussed between the FDA and Krah and
21 First Set of Interrogatories, was 21 Shaw based on what Mr. Krahling told you?
22 marked for identification.) 22 A. Yes
23 - - - 23 Q. Andwhat you witnessed is that
24 BY MR. SANGIAMO: 24  Dr. Krah and Dr. Shaw and the FDA representative
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1 wereinside Dr. Krah'soffice. Isthat right? 1 confirm or deny, but there were other things
2 A. Yes 2 in Exhibit 6 that you did know based on your
3 Q. Isthereadoor on Dr. Krah's 3 own personal knowledge. Right?
4 office? 4 A. Yes.
5 A. Yes 5 Q. | just want to go through some
6 Q. Wasthe door closed to your 6 of the paragraphs or sentence within Exhibit 6
7 recollection? 7 to get asense of which portions of the
8 A. | don'trecal. 8 Amended Complaint fall into each of those two
9 Q. How closewas Mr. Krahling to 9 categories?
10 where Dr. Krah and Dr. Shaw and the FDA 10 MR. KELLER: You got to be
11 representative were talking? 1 kidding me.
12 MR. KELLER: Objection. Lack 12 BY MR. SANGIAMO:
13 of foundation. 13 Q. If yougoto paragraph 3.
14 MR. SANGIAMO: I'm sorry? 14 A. Yes
15 MR. KELLER: Lack of foundation. | 15 Q. Andthelast sentencein
16 THE WITNESS: So the wall of 16 paragraph 3reads: Infact, their superiors
17 Steve's office where he would sit or 17 and senior Merck management pressured them to
18 his desk, | should say, was the wall 18 participate in the fraud and subsequent
19 for Dave Krah's office. So hewas 19 cover-up when Relators objected to and tried
20 right next to his office. 20 tostopit.
21 BY MR. SANGIAMO: 21 Do you have persona knowledge
22 Q. Do you know firsthand whether 22 of your superiors and senior Merck management
23 if oneisat thelocation that Mr. Krahling 23 pressuring you to participate in the fraud?
24 wasat, asyou just described it, one could 24 MR. KELLER: Objection.
Page 534 Page 536
1 hear what is being discussed inside Dr. Krah's 1 Overbroad.
2 office? 2 THE WITNESS: Y our question was
3 A. 1 do not know. 3 if I had personal knowledge?
4 Q. Do you have any knowledge as to 4 BY MR. SANGIAMO:
5 whether there were any follow-up visits from 5 Q. Uh-huh.
6 the FDA in connection with the August 6, 2001, 6 A. Fromthe--
7 inspection? 7 MR. KELLER: The answer isyes
8 A. 1 donot-- notthat | can 8 or no.
9 recdl. | donot-- I'm not aware of any 9 THE WITNESS: Yes.
10 follow-up visits. 10 BY MR. SANGIAMO:
11 Q. Could you take out Exhibit 6, 11 Q. Whatisthat pressure that
12 please? Could you turn to page 2 of 12 you'rereferring to there in that sentence of
13 Exhibit 6, please? Exhibit 6, by the way, is 13 the Complaint?
14 the Amended Complaint in this case. Right? 14 MR. KELLER: Objection. Seeks
15 A. Yes 15 legal conclusion. You can answer.
16 Q. Wetedtified -- you testified 16 THE WITNESS: From the
17 yesterday about your knowledge of what is 17 discussions we had earlier, from some
18 contained within Exhibit 6. Do you remember 18 of the responses | had provided earlier
19 that? 19 was that Dave Krah was asking usto
20 A. Yes 20 change data. The meeting with Emilio
21 Q. And|I think you indicated that 21 was asking us to, you know, expedite
22 there were some things in Exhibit 6 that were 22 the testing and complete the testing,
23 not based on your own knowledge and, 23 offering us bonuses. So in my personal
24 therefore, you personally would not be able to 24 knowledge, that was being pressured to
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1 participate in the fraud. 1 Vague and ambiguous.
2 BY MR. SANGIAMO: 2 THE WITNESS: Itisapretty
3 Q. Yousaid Dr. Krah was asking 3 broad statement. | think that the --
4 youto change data. You'rereferring to the 4 based on what |'ve aready spoke to,
5 fact that Dr. Krah was asking you to go back 5 supports that paragraph.
6 and check the plague counts for the 6 BY MR.SANGIAMO:
7 pre-positives that you testified about 7 Q. Doyou have anything elseto
8 ealier. Right? 8 support it?
9 A. Yes 9 MR. KELLER: Same objection.
10 Q. Andyou say that Dr. Emini 10 THE WITNESS: Again, thereisa
11 offered bonuses. He offered bonuses for 11 lot of documentation that we have, so |
12 completing the work under a certain schedule. | 12 think | have highlighted the key points
13 Right? 13 that would support that.
14 A. Yes 14 BY MR. SANGIAMO:
15 Q. Did he describe any other 15 Q. That would support that Merck
16 condition for the bonus? 16 knew there was diminished efficacy?
17 A. 1 don'trecall him describing 17 MR. KELLER: Asked and answered.
18 any other conditions. 18 THE WITNESS: Yes.
19 Q. And then that sentence also 19 BY MR. SANGIAMO:
20 refersto asubsequent cover up. What areyou | 20 Q. Yes?
21 referring to there? 21 A. Yes
22 MR. KELLER: Same objection. 22 Q. Yousaid you highlighted the
23 Seeks alegal conclusion. 23 Kkey points. You mean there are other points,
24 THE WITNESS: I'mjust trying 24 you just haven't made them yet in the
Page 538 Page 540
1 to think. | can't think of an example 1 deposition?
2 at the moment. 2 A. Again, we spoke about alot of
3 BY MR. SANGIAMO: 3 things. We have alot of documents. So |
4 Q. If youturn to the next page, 4 think | have summarized what -- already what
5 paragraph 5. 5 supports that statement.
6 MR. KELLER: Areyou going to 6 Q. Turnto paragraph 21, please.
7 ask this again? 7 MR. KELLER: We've been going
8 BY MR.SANGIAMO: 8 for an hour, take a break.
9 Q. Thefirst sentence reads, 9 MR. SANGIAMO: Fine by me.
10 "Merck'sfailureto disclose what it knew 10 VIDEOGRAPHER: Thetimeisnow
11 about the diminished efficacy of its mumps 11 5:37.
12 vaccine has caused the government to purchase 12 - - -
13 midabeled, misbranded, adulterated and 13 (A recesswastaken.)
14 falsely certified vaccinesin violation of 14 - - -
15 Merck's contract with the Centers for Disease 15 VIDEOGRAPHER: Thetimeisnow
16 Control...and in violation of the law." 16 5:46. Thisbeginsdisc six. You may
17 My question to you is, what is 17 proceed.
18 your basisfor any assertion you might be 18 BY MR. SANGIAMO:
19 making there that Merck knew about diminished | 19 Q. Ms. Wlochowski, could you take
20 efficacy of the mumps vaccine? Isthere 20 alook at paragraph 21 of Exhibit 6? It'son
21 anything there beyond what you already 21 page7. Thefirst sentence begins, "Merck
22 tetified to in this deposition? 22 predicted the resurgence of outbreaks given
23 MR. KELLER: Objection. 23 the diminished effectiveness of its mumps
24 Overbroad. Seeksalegal conclusion. 24 vaccine."
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1 Do you see that? 1 MR. KELLER: Thank you.
2 A. Yes 2 BY MR. SANGIAMO:
3 Q. Isthat something you have 3 Q. Paragraph 23, first sentence,
4 knowledge of? 4 "Without demonstrating that its mumps vaccine
5 MR. KELLER: Objection. Seeks 5 continued to be 95 percent effective, Merck
6 alega conclusion. Overbroad. 6 risked losing the monopoly it had over the
7 THE WITNESS: Yes. 7 sae of themumpsvaccineinthe U.S."
8 BY MR.SANGIAMO: 8 Isthat something that you have
9 Q. Had Merck made that prediction? 9 knowledge of?
10 You have knowledge of that? 10 MR. KELLER: Objection. Seeks
11 A. Yes 11 alega conclusion. And if you can
12 Q. What isyour knowledge of that? 12 answer the question without disclosing
13 MR. KELLER: Same objection. 13 communications with counsel, feel free
14 You can answer. Overbroad. In 14 to answer. If you can't answer without
15 answering the question, please do not 15 disclosing communications with counsel,
16 disclose any communications you may 16 then please do not.
17 have had with your counsel. To the 17 THE WITNESS: Again, | mean,
18 extent you can answer without disclosing | 18 that's just general knowledge that if a
19 those communications, you may. 19 product is less effective, it would be
20 THE WITNESS: | cannot disclose | 20 -- it would open up the doors for a
21 based on my conversations with counsel. |21 competitor to be able to provide a
22 BY MR. SANGIAMO: 22 better product that's more effective.
23 Q. Youdonthaveany knowledgeof |23 BY MR. SANGIAMO:
24  that other than what you may have discussed | 24 Q. Soyou'rejust referring to
Page 542 Page 544
1 with your counsel? 1 general principles of competition in support
2 A. | believe so. 2 of that sentence?
3 Q. Thethird sentence reads, of 3 A. Insupport of that sentence as
4 paragraph 21 reads, "Merck knows that the 4 well as conversations I've had with counsel.
5 continued passaging of the attenuated virusto | 5 Q. Paragraph 30. Thefirst
6 make more vaccines for distribution has 6 sentencereads, "Even with a deviation that
7 dtered the virus and has degraded the 7 could only overstate how well the vaccine
8 efficacy of the product.” 8 worked, the results from Merck's preliminary
9 Do you have personal knowledge 9 testing (which involved testing blood samples
10 of the basis of that allegation? 10 of approximately 60-100 children) yielded
11 MR. KELLER: | object. Seeksa 11 seroconversion rates significantly below the
12 legal question. Answer to the extent 12 desired 95 percent threshold.”
13 you don't disclose communicationswith | 13 Do you have personal knowledge
14 counsel. If you can answer the question | 14  of that?
15 without disclosing communicationswith | 15 MR. KELLER: If you need to
16 counsel, you may do so. 16 read the paragraph before that, feel
17 THE WITNESS: Again, | cannot 17 freeto do so. If you need to read the
18 answer based on my discussion with 18 rest of paragraph 30, do so aswell.
19 counsel. 19 THE WITNESS: Sol do have
20 BY MR. SANGIAMO: 20 personal knowledge of the preliminary
21 Q. Ifyoulook at paragraph 22. 21 testing yielding seroconversion rates
22 Seven lines down, paragraph reads, "However, | 22 significantly lower than the 95 percent
23 beginning in the late 1990s, Merck...," 23 threshold.
24 Strike that. 24 BY MR. SANGIAMO:
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1 Q. Okay. Thisrefersto preliminary 1 MR. KELLER: Employed. Okay.

2 testing which involved testing blood samples 2 THE WITNESS: Yes.

3 of approximately 60 to 100 children? 3 BY MR. SANGIAMO:

4 A. Yes 4 Q. What isthe basis of your

5 Q. Isthat areference to something 5 knowledge about why it was employed?

6 in Protocol 007 or areference to something else? 6 A. Canl refer back to one of my

7 A. Thatisareferenceto the 7 exhibits?

8 development of the, again, the document for 8 Q. VYes.

9 the development of protocol -- | should say of 9 A. | just want to confirm again.
10 thePRN. 10 Looked at so much information.
11 Q. Soyour knowledge is based on 11 Based on Exhibit 17, | believe
12 that document? 12 that the data calculation spreadsheet is
13 A. Andwith additional information 13 reference to the Excel spreadsheet in that
14 from counsel. 14 hbullet.
15 Q. Thethird sentence says, 15 Q. Soisitfair to say that your
16 "He..," meaning Dr. Krah, "...also admitted 16 knowledge about why the Excel spreadsheet was
17 that the efficacy of Merck's vaccine had 17 employed isbased on the SOP that is at
18 declined over time, explaining that the 18 Exhibit 17?
19 constant passaging of virusto make more 19 A. Thatisknowledge that thereis
20 vaccine for distribution had degraded the 20 the Excel spreadsheet for conducting
21 product and that because of this, mumps 21 caculations. It was aso something that we
22 outbreakswill increase over time." 22 had, myself had access to enter datainto as
23 Did you ever hear Dr. Krah say 23 waell. And the spreadsheet would highlight, if
24 any of those things? 24 | recall correctly, it would highlight the

Page 546 Page 548

1 A. | donot recall DaveKrah 1 pre-positives upon entry.

2 stating that. 2 Q. Highlight how?

3 Q. Turntopage17, please. The 3 A. Again, my recollection isthat

4 third bullet says that "Krah instituted 4 it would highlight the cell yellow.

5 several measuresto isolate the pre-positive 5 Q. Wasyour departure from Dr.

6 samples, facilitate their 'recount' and 6 Krah'slab at your request?

7 consequent conversion to pre-negatives. For 7 A. 1 dontrecal that | requested

8 example, when manually changing original 8 toleavehislab, but | did agreeto it when

9 counting sheets proved too time-consuming, 9 offered.
10 Krah employed an Excel spreadsheet whichwould | 10 Q. Wereyou told that you had no
11 automatically highlight the undesirable 11 choice but to leave hislab?
12 pre-positives so that they could be targeted 12 A. 1 don't recall being told that
13 moreefficiently. The datawas entered, 13 | had nochoice. Again, | agreedtoit. As
14 highlighted and changed before it was ever 14 discussed previously, you know, it was very
15 saved." 15 uncomfortable working there. Based on the
16 My first question is, do you 16 dynamics, in addition more importantly the
17 have personal knowledge about why the Excel 17 manipulation of the data was not something
18 spreadsheet was employed? 18 that | wanted to be apart of. Sowhen | was
19 MR. KELLER: Could | get the 19 given an opportunity to work elsewhere, | took
20 question back? 20 the opportunity. It wasavery good
21 - - - 21 experience for me working in the other lab.
22 (The court reporter read the 22 Itwasadifficult move for me because | felt
23 pertinent part of the record.) 23 abit embarrassed by it because | felt like it
24 - - - 24 wasarranged just to get me out of there.
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1 When| started working in the other lab, | 1 Q. Whowasit that said you're no
2 felt moreat easein that surprisingly the -- 2 longer part of Dave's harem?
3 eventhough | believe it wasin a separate 3 A. lwould-- | believeit wasKim
4  building, the people from that lab knew about | 4 Johnstone.
5 DaveKrah and were actualy supportive of me| 5 Q. Did sheéeaborate on what she
6 inthemove. They're-- as one person stated, 6 meant by that?
7 you're not part of Dave Krah's harem isthe 7 A. I dontthink so.
8 terminology that they used. So it made me 8 Q. Do you have any knowledge of
9 think it wasn't, again, just me thinking that. 9 whether Mr. Krahling signed a separation
10 There was something that was recognized 10 agreement with Merck?
11 outsideof hislaboratory. 11 MR. KELLER: I'm going to ask
12 Q. Maam, wereyou told you had no 12 you -- you can answer that question yes
13 choice but to leave Dr. Krah's |ab? 13 or no.
14 MR. KELLER: Asked and answered. | 14 THE WITNESS: Yes.
15 Comeon. Argumentative. 15 BY MR. SANGIAMO:
16 MR. SANGIAMO: Shedoesn'tget |16 Q. Did hediscuss the separation
17 to do this, Jeff. She hasto answer 17 agreement with you in 20017
18 the question. She doesn't get to make 18 A. What do you mean by discussthe
19 a speech after that. 19 agreement?
20 MR. KELLER: You're not 20 Q. Didhemention to you anything
21 entitled to badger the witness and 21 about apossibility of a separation agreement
22 harass her. Ask your question again, 22 between him and Merck?
23 she'll answer again. It's getting 23 MR. KELLER: Objection. Lack
24 harassing at this point, Dino. 24 of foundation.
Page 550 Page 552
1 THE WITNESS: As| had aready 1 THE WITNESS: | want to say
2 responded in the previous question, no, 2 that he actually mentioned it but it
3 | was not told | had no choice. 3 was never confirmed. | didn't know at
4 BY MR. SANGIAMO: 4 that time if he actually did from my
5 Q. You said something in your last 5 recollection.
6 answer about -- you said you felt embarrassed | 6 BY MR. SANGIAMO:
7 by it because| felt likeit was arranged just 7 Q. When he mentioned it to you,
8 to get meout of there. 8 wasthat at atime period before he had
9 A. Yes 9 actualy signed anything, to your knowledge?
10 Q. What were you referring to 10 A. 1don'trecall.
11 there? 11 Q. Didhemention it toyouinthe
12 A. Agan,if | wasn't willing to 12 context of discussing with you whether he
13 comply with thefraud inthe lab, | felt like 13 should sign a separation agreement?
14 for them it was easier to remove methan to 14 A. No, | don't believe so.
15 addressit. 15 Q. Didhetell you anything about
16 Q. Didthey say that to you? 16 what the terms of the separation agreement
17 A. No. Again, | stated it asa 17 might be?
18 feelingthat | had. 18 A. No.
19 Q. Butit'snot afeeling that was 19 Q. Hasheever told you that?
20 based on anything that anybody said toyou. | 20 MR. KELLER: Y ou can answer as
21 Right? 21 long as you don't answer if counsel was
22 MR. KELLER: Objection. 22 present.
23 THE WITNESS: Correct. 23 THE WITNESS: | cannot answer
24 BY MR. SANGIAMO: 24 based on conversations with counsel.
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1 BY MR.SANGIAMO: 1 MR. SANGIAMO: She's not
2 Q. How frequently did you see 2 answering, Jeff. Let's get an answer.
3 Mr. Krahling in September of 2001, if you 3 MR. KELLER: Objection to form.
4 recal? 4 THE WITNESS: Soif you're
5 A. 1 don't recall when he left 5 asking physically safe, | can't say
6 Merck. 6 that | felt that, felt that | was
7 Q. Whenyou say when he left 7 physically threatened. | can't say
8 Maerck, that's areference to hislast day of 8 that it wouldn't happen, but it was,
9 work at Merck? Do you understand what I'm | 9 yeah, it was not, you know -- like |
10 saying? 10 said, it'sastretch.
11 A. 1do. | don't know when his 11 BY MR. SANGIAMO:
12 last day of work was at Merck. 12 Q. Soyoudid not fed physicaly
13 Q. Didyou have discussions with 13 threatened. Right?
14 him about the separation agreement after he | 14 MR. KELLER: Asked and answered.
15 had stopped working there? 15 Thisisthethird time now. | know you
16 A. | can't remember if it was 16 don't like her answer, but you can
17 prior or -- | want to say after he left Merck, 17 answer again.
18 no. 18 THE WITNESS: What | said
19 Q. Did Mr. Krahling ever tell you 19 previously was that | did not feel
20 that he thought hislife wasin danger? 20 physically threatened because it was a
21 A. Hemay have stated something 21 stretch, and -- but | can't say that's
22 around that, you know, and based on what we | 22 something that wouldn't have happened.
23 weregoing through at thetime, it's-- again, |23 Y ou never know.
24 it'sastretch but it's also part of what we 24 BY MR. SANGIAMO:
Page 554 Page 556
1 werefeeling. Wewereup -- it'samost as 1 Q. You never told anybody that you
2 though we were up against theworld. Atleast| 2 felt physicaly threatened. Right?
3 for me, that's how | felt aswell. 3 A. lcan'trecall.
4 It was very clear to me that 4 MR. SANGIAMO: Give me asecond
5 there was data being changed to reach a 5 here. No further questions.
6 desired outcome. We had discussed it, 6 MR. KELLER: I'vejust got a
7 addressedit. We had raised it internally. 7 couple of questions.
8 We had contacted the FDA. Itwasadifficult | 8 ---
9 thing to do to raise something at abig 9 EXAMINATION
10 company like Merck. It's scary. 10 - - -
11 Q. Didyou think your lifewasin 11 BY MR. KELLER:
12 danger? 12 Q. Couldyoutakealook at
13 A. ldont--1cantell youl had 13 Exhibit 7, your revised Interrogatories,
14 nightmares. It's not agood feeling. 14 particularly page 187
15 Q. Didyou fear for your safety? 15 COURT REPORTER: | can't hear
16 MR. KELLER: Asked and answered. | 16 you.
17 THE WITNESS: That was my 17 BY MR.KELLER:
18 feeling. | wasscared. Soif scared 18 Q. Couldyou takealook at
19 is part of being -- having feelings 19 Exhibit 7, your revised Interrogatories,
20 against feeling safe and comfortable. 20 particularly page 18?
21 BY MR. SANGIAMO: 21 In the fourth paragraph where
22 Q. Fedling physically safe you 22 you testified about the plagues that were too
23 mean? 23 faint to count, in response to this
24 MR. KELLER: Asked and answered. |24 Interrogatory, do you recall whether or not
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1 the plaguesthat were too faint to count were 1 times, but he is a very knowledgeable
2 justa-- wasit more than one cell plate or 2 and trustworthy person. |, again,
3 wasit the entire assay that was too faint to 3 don't believe everything | hear, so,
4 count, if you recall? 4 you know, my opinions about the data
5 MR. SANGIAMO: Object to form. 5 falsification are my own opinions.
6 THE WITNESS: And just to 6 Again, | wouldn't put myself in this
7 clarify, I think that you're referring 7 position to be heretoday if | didn't
8 to the third paragraph? 8 feel myself that this occurrence was
9 BY MR.KELLER: 9 true.
10 Q. Thebottom paragraph. 10 MR. KELLER: | have no further
11 A. Thebottom paragraph. From 11 guestions.
12 what | recall of that reference was that the 12 MR. SANGIAMO: Naothing further.
13 entire assay had the same staining. Andthat |13 VIDEOGRAPHER: Thetimeisnow
14 they werefaint. 14 6:18. This concludes the video
15 Q. If you go back to Exhibit 19 15 deposition.
16 which isthe counting sheet that was put in 16 - - -
17 front of you and asked whether or not this 17 (Witness excused.)
18 counting sheet referenced those particular -- | 18 - - -
19 theassay identified at page 18 of Exhibit 7, 19 (Deposition concluded at 6:18
20 herein Exhibit 19 only a couple of the plates | 20 p.m.)
21 were, infact, faint. Correct? 21
22 MR. SANGIAMO: Object to the 22
23 form. 23
24 THEWITNESS: Yes, someof the |24
Page 558 Page 560
1 plates but not all. % CERTIFICATE
2 BY MR.KELLER: 3
3 O Woudthaleyoutobdieve | oo motes
4 that thisassay 211-1 was not the assay that testimonygwas taken bgfore me, pursuant to
5 youreferred to on page 18 in the last 5 notice, at thetime and place indicated; that
6 paragraph of Exhibit 7?2 6 b ewhdle it dnoringbut e
7 MR. SANGIAMO: Obj ect to the truth; that the testimony of said deponent was
) form. 7 correctly recorded in _machi ne shorthand by me
and thereafter transcribed under my
9 THE WITNESS: It could, yes, it 8  supervision with computer-aided transcription;
10 could be that this s not the assay o wnatfhe eposition 's rf)‘f;fj;”g;?;f\‘fvﬂ ness.
11 that | was referencing. and that | am neither of counsel nor kin to
12 BY MR.KELLER: 10 any party in said action, nor interested in
the outcome thereof.
13 Q. Let meask you one more 11
14 question. WITNESS my hand and official seal this
15 Y ou've known Steve Krahling now ﬁ 20th day of une, 2017.
16 for over 17 years. Correct? 14
17 A. Correct. 15 el
18 Q. During those 17 years, have you Linda Rossi-Rios, RPR, CSR
19 ever known Mr. Krahling to be dishonest? | 19 Notary Public
20 MR. SANGIAMO: Object to the 18
21 form. o
22 THE WITNESS: No. My impression| 21
23 of Steveis he's very knowledgeable. 2
24 And he may throw in some sarcasm at 24
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1 INSTRUCTIONS TO WITNESS 1
2 Please read your deposition over 2
3 carefully and make any necessary corrections. | 3 ACKNOWLEDGMENT OF DEPONENT
4 You should state the reason in the appropriate | 4 I, , do
5 gpace on the errata sheet for any corrections 5 hereby certify that | have read the foregoing
6 that are made. 6 pages and that the sameis a correct
7 After doing so, please sign the errata 7 transcription of the answers given by meto
8 sheet and dateit. 8 the questions therein propounded, except for
9 Y ou are signing same subject to the 9 the corrections or changesin form or
10 changesyou have noted on the errata sheet, 10 substance, if any, noted in the attached
11  which will be attached to your deposition. 11 Errata Sheet.
12 It isimperative that you return the 12
13 origina errata sheet to the deposing attorney | 13
14  within thirty (30) days of receipt of the 14 DATE SIGNATURE
15 deposition transcript by you. If you fail to 15
16 do so, the deposition transcript may be deemed| 16  Subscribed and sworn to before me this
17 to be accurate and may be used in court. 17 day of , 2017.
18 18
19 19 My commission expires:
20 20
21 21
22 22 Notary Public
23 23
24 24 Assignment: 2632763
Page 562
1
ERRATA
PO
3 PAGE LINE CHANGE
4 _
5 Reason for Change:
6
7
8 Reason for Change:
9
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Reason for Change:

Job No. PA2632763
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